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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATION

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to Section 176 and 177 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements.

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:

(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act zoog and local Government Regulation 2012 for the
establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i) the general purpose financial statements, as set oul on pages 3 Lo 53, present a true and fair view, in accordance with

Australion Accounting Standards, of Council's transactions for the financial year and financial position at the end of
the year.

Mayar

Dated this ' :2,;&:“ day of @c-T«D'EEE‘_ 2014

Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 1“1—1“'\' day of 'E)&\\._v 2014

| TOWNSNILLE €109 COUNEIL - ANMWAL BFEQRT 251075
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Hote 2014 2013
000 $000

Income
Revenue
Recurrent Revenue
Rates, levies and charges 2{a) 315,370 194,693
Fees and charges 2(h) 24,444 23,412
Interest received 2{e) 5468 4,741
Other income 2(d) 13,068 14,762
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 2le) 23,610 35,614

381,960 373,222
Capital Revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations z(f) 54,679 83,316
Total revenue - 436,435 456,538
Capital Income
Contribution of assets 2(g) 46,691 51,646

46,691 51645

Total income 483,130 508,184
Expenses
Recurrent Expenses
Employee benefits [132,344) (120,290
Materials and services (112,501) (119,338
Depreciation and amorlisation 3{al (102,142) {101,38%)
Finance costs ) (23,198) (24,880
Other expenses 3le) (3.979) (2.514)
Share of net loss of joint venture 11{a) (1.711) (3,286)

[375,885) (371,697)

Capital Expenses 3d) (78,2700 (39.168)
Total expenses (454,155) [410,884)
Net result 28,975 97,320

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to net resull

HNet gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment [295,403) 33,989
Talal other comprehensive income for the year [295,403) 33,989
Total comprehensive income for the year (266,428) 131,309

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Ace ounting Policies,

TOWNAVILL CI0Y COUMNCIR  ANRLAL REPORY JOTRTE 1 0
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 |UNE 2014

Naote 2014 2013
S000 S000

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 96,785 77,810
Invesiments 6 10,000
Trade and other receivables i 35,395 43,172
Inventories 8 1,261 1.605
Other assels 14 2,155 3,327
Assets classified as held for sale 9 : 718
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS N 145,596 126,632
HON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables F 10,005 6,138
Investments accounted for using the equity method 10 23,905 25,625
Property, plant and equipment 12 4,324,190 4,620,311
Intangible assels 13 12,409 12,256
ther assets 14 4,988 105
Assels classified as held for sale g - 4,995
TOTAL ON-CURRENT ASSETS £, 375,697 4,669,430
TOTAL ASSETS 4,521,093 4,796,067
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 15 55,321 50,651
Barrowings 17 19,600 19,983
Provisions 18 9,136 20,360
Other current liabilities 16 1,953 995
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 87,010 91,989
HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 15 1,973 .
Borrowings 17 314,233 333,842
Provwisions 18 A2,430 28,357
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES . 358,636 362,199
TOTAL LIABILITIES L5 B46 454,188
MET COMMUNITY ASSETS 8075407 4,341,876
EQUITY
Assel Revaluation Surplus 19 GAB 442 GBI, B4S
Retained surplus 3,387,005 3,358,029
TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY T L07S447 4,341,874

*See Note 27 for details regarding the retrospective restatement of comparative figures.

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note Retained Asset General Total
Surplus  Revaluation Reserves
Surplus
5000 S000 5000 S000
Balance as at o4 July 2013 3,358,029 DB3.845 . 4,361,874
Net result for the year 28975 . . 28,975
Increase/ [decrease} in assel revaluation surplus . (295,403) . [295,403)
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,387,005 GEEB, Au2 - 6,075,447
Transfers to and from reserves .
Balance as at 30 June 2014 3,387,005 6BE 442 = _a_,n;s'.ﬁ'r;; I
Balance as at o1 July 2012 3,263,762 042,856 29,439 4,243,067
Effect of correction of eror 70l [32,492) . - {32,497
Restated balances 3,231,270 949,856 219,439 4,210,565
Net result lor the year '_-_9‘?,!2? . - 97,320
Increase/ [decrease) in assel revaluation surplus o 33,989 . 33,989
Total comprehensive income for the year - 97310 33,989 . 131,309
Transfers to and from reserves 29,439 =% (29,43%)
Balance as at 30 June 2013 3,358,029 983,845 - 4,361,874

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Mate 2014 2013
5000 5000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 400,919 §02,712
Payments to suppliers and employees (257,057} (384, 745)
Interest received 5468 3,148
Finance costs (22,388) [23,656)
Wet cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 24 126,942 B 9}'.4_5;_
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 46,627 3,922
Net movement in loans and advances {5,010) 11
Net movement in term deposil over go days (10,000 .
Proceeds from cash contributions for constructing assets 54,479 83,316
Payments of property, plant and equipment {171,982} {149,560)
Payments of intangible assets (2,089) 1B, 186)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities (87,975) (70,497)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Praceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings (19.992) (18,813)
Net cash inflow {outliow) from financing activities {19,992} (18,813)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalent held 18,975 8,149
Cash and cash eqguivalents at the beginning of financial year 77,810 69,661
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 5 96,785 77810

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notés and Significant Accounting Policies
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Preparation

These general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 and have been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, and other authoritative
pronouncements issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Local Government Act 2o0g and the Local
Government Regulation 2012,

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain
non-current assets.

(b) Statement of Compliance

These general purpose financial statements comply with all accounting standards and interprelations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASH) that are relevant to Council’s operations and effective for the current
reparting period. Because Council is a not-for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting Standards include requirements
for not-for-profit entities which are inconsistent with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), to the extent

these inconsistencies are applied, these financial statements do not comply with IFRS. The main impacts are in the
fallowing accounting treatments:

— the offsetting of revaluation and impairment gains and losses within a class of assels; and
— the timing of the recognition of non-reciprocal revenue.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs, modified by the measurement
al fair value of selected assets and liabilities, where applicable,

{e) Currency
Townsville City Council uses the Australian Dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency.

{d) Constitution

Tewnsville City Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Gavernment Act 2o09 and is domiciled in Australia.

(e) Date of Authorisation

The financial statements were aulhorised for issue on the date they were submitted to the Auditor-General for final
signature. This is the date the management cerlificate is signed.

(f) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

In the current year, Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations Issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to ils operations and effective for the current
reporting period, The adoption of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations has mol resulled in any
malerial changes to Council’s accounting policies. However the Application of AASS 13 Fair Valire Measurement and
AASE 2011-8 Amendments [o Australion Accounting Standards arising from AASE 13 for the first time this year has
resulted in greater disclosures.

Al the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Standards and Interpretations listed below were in
issue but not yet effective.

Effective for annual report

Accounting Standard or Interpretation : e
periods beginning on or after:

AASB g Financial Instruments (December 2009) 1)an 2017
AASE 10 Consolidated Financial Sfatements 1Jan 2014
AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 1]an 2014
AASE 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities 1]an 2014
AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements (reploces the existing standard together with AASE 10) 1jan 2014
AASE 128 Investments in Associates and foint Ventures (replaces the existing standar) 1lan 2014
AASE 1055 Budgetary Reporting 1 ul 2004
2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASE g (December 2009) 1]an 2015

AASE zono-7 Amendments to Australion Accounting Standards arising from AASB g (December 2016} 1 )an 2015

TOWKRSYHLE COIY COUNCIL - SUGLAL BERDRT 2G5/
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

AASE zo11-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the

Consolidation and joint Arrangements Standards 1lan zo14
AASE zo12-3 Amendments lo Australian Accounting Standards - Gffsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Linbiities [AASE 132 1]an zo14
AASB 2013-1 Amendments fo AASE 1049 - Relocation of Budgetary Reporting

Reguirements 1 Jul 2014
AASE 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-

Finarcial Assels 1lan 2014
AASE 20134 Amendmenis to Ausiralian Accounting Standards - Novation of Derivatives

and Continuation of Hedge Accounting [AASE 139] 1lan 2014
AASE 2013-5 Amendments lo Australian Accounting Standards — Investment Entities

[AASE 1, AASB 3, AASE 7, AASE 10, AASE 12, AASB 107, AASE 112, AASE 124, MSE 127,

AASB 132, AASB 134 & AASE 139] 1jan zo14
AASE 20136 Amendments to AASE 136 arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements 1lan 2014
AASE 2013-7 Amendments to AASE 1038 arising from AASE 10 in relation to

conselidation and interests of policyholders [AASBE 1038] 1]an 2014
AASE 2013-8 Amendments (o Australian Accounting Standards - Australian

Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities - Control and Structured Entities

[AASE 10, AASE 12 & AASE 1049] 1Jan z2o14
AASBz013-0 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual Framewaork,

Materiality and Financial Instruments Refer title column

[Operative dates: Part A Conceptual Framework — 20 Dec 2013: Part 8 Materialily - 1 fan

2014; Part C Financial Instruments — 1 fan zo15f

Inferpretation 21 Levies 1lan 2014
AASB g Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 2015)

AASE g, which replaces AASE 139 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is effective for reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015 and must be applied retrospectively. The main impact of AASE g is to change the
requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures associated with financial assets, Under the new
requirements the four current categories of financial assels stipulated in AASE 139 will be replaced with two measurement
calegories: fair value and amortised cost and financial assets will only be able to be measured at amortised cost where
very specific conditions are mel.

As aresult, Council will be required to measure its financial assets, including its investment in Townsville Entertainment and
Convention Centre (TECC) refer Note 1(t), at fair value. Had this requirement been adopted at 30 June 2014, management
estimate that the fair value of this investment would have been $23,905,000 in the Council's separate Statement of
Financial Position. There would also have been a corresponding loss of $1,721,000 recognised in other comprehensive
incame.

{g) Rounding of Amounts

The amounts included in the financial report have been rounded to the neares| $1,000 or where that amount is $500 or
less, to zero. Amounts shown in the financial statements may not add Lo the camect sub totals or totals due to rounding.

(h) Comparative Figures

Where Council has retrospectively applied an accounting policy or made a retrospective restatement of items in the
financial statements or reclassified items in its financial statements, an additional Statement of Financial Position as at
the beginning of the earliest comparative period will be disclosed. For delails regarding the restatement of comparative
figures, refer to Note 27,

(i) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

In the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are nol readily apparent from other sources, The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant,
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The eslimales and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions lo accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future
periods as relevant.

TOWNSVELLE CIRY COUNCIH » AHRUEY REPORT 7o1%/1¢
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

ludgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial
statement notes:

- Fair value assessmenlts of property, plant and equipment assets. Refer to Nole 31;

- Estimated useful life assessments of property, plant and equipment assets. Refer to Note 12;

- Impairment of property, plant and equipment assets, Refer to Note 12;

- Impairment of trade and other receivables. Refer to Note 7;

- Measuremenl! and recognition of provisions. Refer to Note 18; and

- Measurement and recognition of revenue arising from non-reciprocal transfers of assets. Refer Note 2,

(j) Taxation

Income of local authorities and public autherities is exempt from Commonwealth income taxation except for Fringe
Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax (GST).

The commercial businesses of Council pay an income tax equivalent Lo Council in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Act 2009,

Where a commercial business of Council is subject to the tax equivalents regime, the income tax expense is calculated
an the operating surplus adjusted for permanent and timing differences between taxahle and accounting income. These
transactions are eliminated upan consolidation of the commercial business units.

Council pays payroll tax to the Queensland Government on certain activities,

(k) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST
incurred is nol recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense or liability,

Receivables and payables in the Statement of Financial Position are shown inclusive of G5T, The nel amount of GST

recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office, is shown as an asset or liability respectively in the
Statement of Financial Position.

(1) Carban Pricing

In zon1 the Australian Government introduced a Clean Energy Legislation package. One aspect of this package, which has
impacted Council directly and indirectly is the introduction of a pricing mechanism for greenhouse gas emissions in the
Australian economy.

The pricing mechanism commenced on 1 July 2012 and sel a fixed price path for the first three years ($23 per tonne of
CO2-equivalent emissions adjusted in real terms by 2.5 percent per annum) before moving to a flexible price mechanism
fram 1 July 2015, It provides a framework for setting a cap on greenhouse gas emissions by capping the number of carbon
units available once the flexible price period commences, which can be adjusted over time to ensure that the government's
reduction largets are mel,

Council has two landfills that produce emissions that exceed the current relevant liability threshold. In addition a third
landfill was expected (o exceed the emissions threshold by 2016, Council projections indicate that each of these facilities
will cantinue (o exceed the relevant emissions threshalds into the foreseeable fulure.

Council recognises a liability under the carbon pricing mechanism as the emissions from these facilities occur, Organic
material within waste deposited at landfills takes time to begin decomposing. Waste deposited in 2012/13 only began Lo
break down and generate emissions at the start of 2013/14; therefore Countil recognised a liability for the purchase of or
purchased carbon permits for the first time this year. Council's liability for carbon permits for emissions during 2013/ 14
was $605,614.

Although waste deposited in landfills takes over twelve months Lo begin emitling carbon dioxide, it also continues to

generate emissions for the following 4o years so Council may have an ongoing liability for this “carbon tax” in respect of
the past and future waste deposited.

TO RAVILLE CUFY COUNDIL - ANNUAL REEDRT Ja11/1E 1
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

The final accounting treatment for the recognition of ongoing liability for “carbon tax" has not been decided by the Council
at the date of this report.

On the 17th |uly 2014 the Clean Energy Legislation (Carbon Tax Repeal) Bill 2013 was passed by the Senate, When the bill
becomes law, it will repeal the Clean Energy Act 2011 and abolish the carbon pricing mechanism from 1 July 2014.

(m) Revenue

Rates, levies, grants and other revenue are recognised as revenue on receipt of funds or earlier upon unconditional
entitlement o the funds.

Rates and utilities
Where rate monies are received prior to the commencement of the rating period, the amount is recagnised as revenue in
the period in which they are received,

Fees and charges
Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds. Generally this is upon lodgement af the
relevant applications or documents, issuing of the infringement notice or when the service is provided.

Grants, subsidies and contribution
Grants, subsidies and contributions thal are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year in which
Council obtains control over them.

Where grants, subsidies and contributions are received thal are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised as the various
performance obligations under the funding agreement are fulfilled. Council currently receives contributions for the
maintenance of state controlled roads. These funds are held as an uneamed revenue liability until projects are evaluated
and approved by the relevant funding body.

Sales revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point of sale as this corresponds to the transfer of significant risks and

rewards of ownership of the goods and the cessation of all Council's involvement in those goods.

Rental Income
Rental revenue from property is recognised as income on a periodic straight line basis over the lease term,

Interest received
Interest received from term deposits is accrued over the term of the investment,

Other Income

Council receives cash contributions from property developers to construct assets such as roads and footpaths and to
connect new property developments to water and sewerage networks in the local government area. Where agreements
between Council and the developers relating to these contributions are determined to fall within the scope of A4SE
Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assels from Customers these contributions are recognised as revenue when the related
service obligations are fulfilled,

Council may also receive cash contributions towards the cost of constructingfupgrading existing and proposed water
supply and sewerage headworks in accordance with Council's planning scheme policies. Cash contributions in relation to
water supply and sewerage headworks are not within the scope of AASB Interpretation 18 because there is no performance
obligation associated with these contributions, Consequently, these cash contributions are recognised as income when
received in accordance with AASE 1004 Contribiutions.

Physical assets contributed to Council by developers in the form of buildings, road works, stormwater, water and wastewater
infrastructure and park equipment are recognised as revenue when the development becomes “on maintenance™ (i.e.
Council obtains control of the assets and becomes liable for any ongoing maintenance) and there is sufficient data in
the form of drawings and plans to determine the approximate specifications and values of such assets. All non-cash
cantributions are recognised at the fair value of the contribution received on the date of acquisition.

Grants and subsidies that meel the recognition criteria as Bevenue above, but are recelved for the purpose of constructing
assets, are treated as grants, subsidies, contributions and donations in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

{n) Leases

Leases of plant and equipment under which Council assumes substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership but not
the legal ownership are classified as finance leases and amortised on a straight line basis over the term of the [ease or
where it is likely Council will abtain ownership of the asset, over the life of the asset, QOther leases, where substantially all
the risks and benefils remain with the lessor, are classified as aperating leases

1 POTOWHSYILLE C0fY COUNRLN - SNMUAL BEFGRT JO13/16
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Payments made under operating leases are expensed in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis of allocation is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased property.

In recording and reporting lease arrangements as lessor, Council records in the Statement of Financial Position the lease
premiums related o the asset and records as revenue in the current period the amount of the lease premium which is
regarded as having been earned in the current period based on the pattern of benefits recelived by the lessee.

Council has no finance leases in this reporting period,

(o) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at the year end, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement
of Financial Position, when applicable,

External restrictions have been placed on Council’s cash and cash equivalents, held as a result of non-reciprocal unspent
grants and contributions, These restrictions are disclosed in Mote 5,

(p) Investments

Term deposils in excess of three months are reported as investments, with deposits of less than three months being
reported as cash equivalents. At 30 June zo14 Council had three term deposits in excess of three months,

(q) Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery. Trade receivables are generally
settled within 30 days from invoice date. They are presented as current assets unless collection is not expected for more
than 12 months after the reporting date.

The collectability of receivables is assessed on an ongoing basis. Receivables which are known to be uncollectable are
written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance aceount is used when there is objective evidence that
Council will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor such as bankruptey, liquidation or receivership along with any legal action 1aken on defaull or
delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. In addition, an im pairment
loss will be recognised on those receivables over which Council no longer has contral, The amount of the impairment
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at
the effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term recejvables are not discounted il the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the net result within other expenses. When a trade receivable for
which an allowance for impairment loss had been recognised becomes uncollectable in a subsequent period, it is written
ofl against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other
revenue in profit or loss. All known bad debts were written off at 30 June 2014,

If required Council has the power to sell an owner’s property to recover cerlain oulstanding rate receivables, in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2009, Council does not recognise any impairment on these particular rate receivables.
However, in recognition of the 3 year period for residential properties and 1 year period for commercial properties that
muslt lapse prior Lo collection being pursued via sale of the property, in accordance with the Local Government Regulation
2012, these receivables are presented as non-current recelvables, Additionally, it is Council's policy not to pursue averdue
rate receivables from eligible pensioners and therefore any overdue rate receivables to be collected from these customers
are presented as non-current receivables,

Other Term receivables, such as loans and advances, are recognised in the same way as other receivables. Security is nol
normally obtained,

Other receivables includes accrued income and revenue not yet invoiced, along with miscellaneous non-trade debtors
such as amounts related to GST receivable,

(r) Invenlories

(i) Inventory held for consumption

TRWRHIVIAL CITY COUNECIL - AMrLAL BEPOET 01008
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Raw materials and stores

Raw materials and stores are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value and include, where applicable, direct
material, direct labour, and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overheads. The cost of significant categories of
inventory are based on welghted average cost,

Inventories held for distribution are:

- goods 1o be supplied at no or nominal charge; or
- goods to be used Tor the provision of services at no or nominal charge.

These goods are valued at the lower of cost and replacement cost.
{ii) Inventory held for sale
Land develaped and held for sale is classified as inventory

Land held for development and sale is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of
acquisition, development, borrowing costs and holding costs until completion of development. Finance costs, and holding
charges incurred after development is completed, are expensed. Profits are brought to account on the signing of an
unconditional contract of sale.

(s) Non Current assets held for sale

Items of property, plant and equipment are reclassified as assets held for sale if thelr carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and where sale is considered highly probable.
They are measured al the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as,
financial assets and investment property that are carried at fair value, which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset ta fair value less costs to sell. Again
is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current
assel is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-currenl assels are nol depreciated or amorlised while they are classified as held for sale. Non-current assels
classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the Statement of Financial Position,

(t) Interests in Joint Ventures

Council's interest in the joint venture has been recognised by including its share of any assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses of the joint venture within the relevant items reported in the Statement of Comprehensive income and Statement
of Financial Position. Information aboul the joint venlure is sét out in Note 10 and Note 11.

{u) Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement

The cost method of accounting is used for the initial recognition of all property, plant and equipment assets. Cost is
determined as the fairvalue of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including all costs
incurred in preparing the assets ready for use or for restoring the asset at the end of its life 1o meet specific obligations.

Property, plant and equipment recelved in the form of contributions, are recognised as assels and revenues at fairvalue by
Council valuation where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective assel class. Fair value is defined
in Fair Valuve Measurements Nole 31.

Physical assets contributed to Council by developers in the form of road works, stormwater, water and waslewater
infrastructure and park equipment are recognised when Council obtains control of the assels and becomes liable for any
ongoing maintenance. All non-cash contributions are recognised at the fair value of the contribution received.

Items of land with a total value less than $1 and all other property, plant and equipment with a total value of less than
S5.000, are reated as an expense in the period of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
recognised as assets. Assets such as computers and water meters that have individual values below $5,000 but are
connected o a network are trealed as assets.
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A park, including all the play equipment and shade sails therein, is treated as a single asset with linked sub-assets,

The measurement basis used for determining the gross carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment
dassels are set oul in Note 12,

Acquisition of assets

Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost. Costis determined as the fairvalue of the assets given as cansideration
plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including freight in, architect’s fees and engineering design fees and all other
establishment costs,

Capital end operating expenditure

Wage and materials expenditure incurred for the acquisition or construclion of assels are treated as capital expenditure.
Routine operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity of the non-current
assel |5 expensed as incurred, while expenditure that relates to replacement of a major component of an asset to maintain
its service potential is capitalised,

Valuation

Land, buildings, infrastructure and other assels are measured on the revaluation basis, at fair value, in accordance with
AASB116 Property, Plant and Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. All other non-current assels, principally
plant and equipment, are measured at cost, Where there is no active market, assets will be valued at replacement cast
less obsolescence, Where assets are not required, and intended 1o be disposed of fair value is the anticipated nelt sale
proceeds. Assets recently purchased are shown in the financial statements at their historical cost less accumulated
depreciation. Assets within each class of praperty, plant and equipment carried at fair value are revalued as necessary, so
that the carrying amount of each class of asset does nol materially differ from its fair value al the reporting date.

Revaluations are undertaken in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipmenl, Locol Governmen!t Regulation
2012 and Council Palicy, In the intervening years, Council internally assesses through physical inspection the condition
of infrastructure assets on a sample basis and as part of the maintenance process. The inspection results are considered
in combination with external indices from a range of sources including the Australian Bureau of Statistics, the Bureau of
Resources and Energy Economics, plus data provided by Queensland Treasury and where appropriate internally sourced
capital cost data. Indices are viewed over a 5 year cycle and short term fluctuations are discounted in determining the
appropriate index to be applied. Together these are used Lo form the basis of a management valuation lor infrastruciure
assel classes in each of the Intervening years when an external revaluation is not performed,

Any revaluationincrement arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the asset revaluation
surplus, excepl to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A
decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the
revaluation surplus of that asset class.

Valualions of non-current assets which were current as al 30 June 2014 were delermined on the following basis:-

Land

Land assels were valued as at 28 February 2014 on a lair value basis (market value) valued by Knight Frank (Craig Stack
FAPI MDIA Registered Valuer (Qld) No.1632). These valuations were applied at 3o June 2014 as it was determined there had
been no material change in values in the intervening period.

Buildings

Buildings, including fixed plant, Fxtures and fittings, were valued as at 28 February 2014 at their respective depreciated
replacement cost determined by independent valuations performed by Michael Puntill from AECOM (RPEQ No.11865),
Where a market value existed, this was used to determine fair value and valued by Knight Frank (Craig Stack FAPI MDIA

Registered Valuer (Qld) Ne.1632). These valuations were applied at 30 June 2014 as it was determined there had been no
material change in values in the intervening period.

Landfills

Landfill assets are valued at 3o June zo14 by creating a complementary asset equivalent to the future provision for
restoration of the landfill sites and depreciating the cost over the effective life of the asset,
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The valuation process was performed as follows:

- Commissioning of a report on values and timing by external consultants AECOM on the anticipated life and site plans of
the landfills and using that data to obatin subsequent estimated costs to restore the sites to comply with existing licence
and environmental requirements.

- Management assessing the repart for completeness and accuracy and making amendments based on existing Council
policies. Provision eslimates are prepared using an agreed landfill capping methodology selected by engineering stalf
as being the most effective in meeting landfill licence canditions. This methodology was applied during the year to both
Stuart and Hervey Range cell capping works.

Management has determined that this method accurately reflects fair value for these assels al 3o June 2014.

Land improvements

Land Improvements were valued as at 28 February 2014 al their respective depreciated replacement cost determined by
independent valuations performed by Michael Puntill from AECOM (RPEQ No.11865). Where a market value existed, this
was used to determine fair value. These valuations were applied al 30 June 2014 as it was determined there had been no
material change in values in the intervening period.

Land improvement assets were subject to independent revaluation in the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

Transport netwark

Roads and bridges were valued as at 28 February zo14 at their respective depreciated replacement cost determined
by independent valuations performed by Lemmah Ply Ltd (Graham John Jordan RPEQ No.3305). These valuations were
applied at 30 June 2014 as it was determined there had been no material change in values in the intervening period. The
rates are based an the road profiles established by the Roads and Transport Alliance Valuation Project, a joint initiative by
LGAQ and the Queensiand Govermment, of which both Council and the valuer are members.

Management has determined that this method accurately reflects fair value for these assets at 30 June 2014,

Major Fixed Plant

Major Fixed Plant including Treatment Plants and Pump stations and excluding pipelines were valued as at 28 February
2014 al their respective depreciated replacement cost determined by inde pendent valuations performed by Michael Puntill
from AECOM (RPEQ Mo.11865), Where a market value existed, this was used to determine fair value. These valuations were
applied at 30 June 2014 as it was determined there had been no material change in values in the intervening period.

Managemeni has determined that this method accurately reflects fair value for these assets at 30 June 2014,
Pipe network

Pipe netwark assets were valued as at 28 February 2014 at their respective depreciated replacement costs by qualified
council staff and external valuers, laking Into account any expired portion of their useful lives. The economic life is based
on engineering estimates at the time of installation, which, barring the opportunity to perform an intervening condition
review of the underground asset, remains in place for the lifetime of that pipe,

The valuation process was performed as follows:

- Stormwater pipe network assels were revalued al their depreciated replacement cost based on independenl valuations
performed by Lemmah Pty Ltd (Graham |ehn Jordan RPEC No.3305). The process incorporates a review of unit rates for
stormwater drainage with the valuer referring to the rates applied by other Councils utilising a *first principles’ model
approach, consultant model rates and consultant greenfield contract rates.

- Water and Wastewater pipe network assets were revalued at their depreciated replacement cost based on assessments
performed by Northern Water Management Pty Lid () Ballard RPEQ No.68gg), The process incorporates the determination
of unit rates by reference to data contained in Rawlinsons Australian Construction Handbook plus an assessment of
Council's internal and external costings.

= These valuations were determined by Council contractors above to materially reflect fair value as at 28 February 2014.
These valuations were applied at 30 June 2014 as it was determined there had been no material change in values in the
intervening period,
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Pipe network assets acquired during the financial year ended 30 June 2014 are recognised at revaluation rates for assets
commissioned up until 28 February 2014 and at cost less depreciation for assetsin the intervening period to 30 June 2014.
Management has determined that this method accurately reflects Fair value for these assels at 30 June 2014.

Doms and Weirs

Dams and Weir assets (excluding pipelines) were valued as at 28 February 2oa4 at their respective depreciated replacement
cost delermined by independent valuations performed by Michael Puntill from AECOM (RPEQ No.11865). These valuations
were applied at 30 June 2014 as it was delermined there had been no material change in values in the intervening period.

Wastewater assets were subject to independent revaluation in the financial year ended 30 June 2014,
Heritage and Cultural

Other assets were valued as at 30 June 2014 at their respective depreciated replacement cost determined by management.
Heritage listed structures moved into this class at 30 June 2014 have a value determined at 28 February 2014 as per the
building class above.

Mo indices have been used to determine the appropriate carrying value as there is no publicly referenced index deemed
appropriate by management for the purpose. Management has assessed thal the reported carrying values represent fair
value at balance date.

Any ather assels purchased or donated during the 2013/14 financial year have been recognised al cost, which has been
determined by management to equate to fair value.

Land under roods

Land under roads acquired before 30 |une 2008 is recognised as a non-current asset where Council holds title or a financial
lease over the asset. Council does not have any such land haldings,

Land under the road network within the Council area that has been dedicated and opened lor public use under the Land
Act 1954 or the Land Title Act 2994 is not controlted by Council but is controlled by the state pursuant to the relevant
legislation, therefore, this land is not recognised in these financial statements.

Deed of Settlement in Trust Lands

Under a Deed of Settlement in Trust dated 23rd |uly 2009, Council is Trusiee of the Jezzine Land Trust comprising certain
land titles known as Jezzine Barracks. Council has not recognised this land as an asset. Under the terms of the Trust,
Council has control over the improvements on the site and accordingly the improvements are recognised as assets in these
financial statements.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment assets, with the exception of land, having a limited useful life, are systematically depreciated
over their useful lives as listed in Note 12,

Depreciation |s recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of each property, plant and equipment asset.

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are
assigned useful lives distinct from the assel to which they relate. Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed
capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new depreciable amound is depreciated over the remaining
useful life of the asset to Council. Where expenditure extends the life of an asset, the expenditure is capitalised and the
assel's |ife is revised,

Cepreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed
al the end of each repaorting period and adjusted where necessary (o reflect any changes in the pattern of consumption,
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, or management intentions. The condition assessments
performed as parl of the annual valuation process for assets measured al written down current replacement cost are used
to estimate the useful lives of these assets at each reporting date, The useful lives for each class of asset is included in

MNote 12.
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Assets under construction

Wage and materials expenditure incurred for the acquisition or construction of asselts is treated as capital expenditure,
Routine operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity of the non-current
asselis expensed as incurred, while expenditure that relates to replacement of a major component of an asset to maintain
its service polential is capitalised.

The costs of non-current assels canstructed by Council includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct
labour and other costs directly attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition for it Lo operate in the manner
intended.

Derecagnition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal and when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal,

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment, and is recognised nel, within either other income or
other expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income where appropriate.

(v) Borrowings and Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cosis. Subsequent to initial
recognition these liabilities are measured at amortised cost,

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2o:z Council adopts an annual debt policy that sets out Council's
planned barrowings for the next nine years. Council's current policy is to only borrow for capital projects and for a term
no longer than the expected life of the asset. Council also aims to comply with the Queensland Treasury Corparation’s
borrowing guidelines and ensure that sustainability indicators remain within acceptable levels at all times.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale {qualifying assets), are added to the cost of those
assels, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale,

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
(w) Impairment of Current and Non-Current Assets

All current and non-current physical and intangible assels are assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. If
an indicator of possible impairment exists, Council determines the asset's recoverable amounl. Any amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. For assets that are valued at
replacement cost less obsolesence, Council adjusts the remaining life and accumulated depreciation when an assel has a
material change in service potential that would otherwise be treated as an impairment.

The asset's recoverable amaount is determined as the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of 1o sell and its value in
use. The value in use of an assel is equal Lo the depreciated replacement cost.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the assel
revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years, A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation surplus.
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() Intangible Assets
Software assets

Software assels are recognised as intangible assets, where their cost exceeds $5,000. Intangible assets with a lesser
value than $5,000 are expensed. Expenditure on internally generated intangible assels is recognised from the dale of the
approval by Council of a capital expenditure authorisation for the acquisition or development of the asset. This approval
Is taken lo Indicate that the project meets the criteria for recognition under AASE 138 Intangible Assels.

Expenditure on software assets, up to the decision to generate the assel in a particular form, are research costs and are
expensed. It has been determined that there is not an active markel for any of Council’s intangible assets. As such, the
assels are recognised and carried al cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is based on the cost of a software asset less its residual value and is recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Financial Performance. Amaortisation is calculated on a straight-ling basis over the expected period of
expected benefit to Council that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives for software assets are between 3
and 10 years, Council does not hold any intangible assets with infinite lives,

Amaortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

{y) Payables

Accounts payable have been recognised as a liability for the year ended 30 June zo14 at the time when the amount owed
can be measured reliably and when it Is probable the account will be paid. Thisis at the time of the goods being received
or the service being performed. The amount recognised for each creditor Is based an purchase or conlracl costs. The
amounts owing are unsecured and are normally settled within 30 working days.

(z) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when Council has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured,

Restoration labilities

A provision is made for the cost of rehabilitation of assets and ather future restoration costs where it is probable Council
will be liable, or required, to incur costs on the cessation of use of these facilities. The provision represents the present
value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure of the |andfill sites, decontamination and manitoring of
histarical residues and leaching on these siles.

The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application of environmental legislation, site closure
dates, available technologies and engineering cost estimates. These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure
differing from amounts currently provided. Because of the long-term nature of the liability, the most significant uncertainty
in estimating the provision is the costs that will be incurred. The provision recognised for landFill sites is reviewed at least
annually and updated based on the facts and circumstances available al the time,

The provision is measured at the expected cost of the work required, discounted to current day values using market yields
on Commaonwealth Government bonds with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cashflows. Changes to
the provision resulting from the passing of time (the unwinding of the discount) are treated as a finance cost.

Nelly Bay Provision

A provision has been recognised as the present value of the estimated maintenance and operating costs relating to certain
areas of which Council is responsible for the Nelly Bay Harbour. Council has a present obligation to incur these costs due
to the issuing of special rate levies billed to the residents of the precingl,

These levies are specifically received for the purposes of funding these costs.

(aa) Employee Benefils

Liabilities are recognised for employee benefits such as wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave in respect
of services provided by the employees up Lo the reporting date. Liabilities for employee benefits are assessed at each

reporting date. Where it is expected that the leave will be paid in the next twelve months the liability is treated as a current
liability. Otherwise the liability is treated as non-current,
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Solaries and wages

A liability for salaries and wages is recagnised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay
rates in respect of employees’ services up Lo thal date. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reported in Note
15 as a trade payable.

Superannuation

The superannuation expense for the reporting period is the amount of the contribution the Council makes to the
superannuation plan which provides benefils to its employees. Details of those arrangements are sel out in Mote 28,

(i} Shart term obligations

A liability is recognised for annual leave. Amounts expected to be settled within 12 months (the current portion) are
calculated on current wage and salary levels and includes related employee an-costs. Amounts not expected to be settled
within 12 months (the non-current portion) are calculaled on projected fulure wage and salary levels and related employee
on-costs, and are discounted Lo present values, This liability represents an accreed expense and is reported in Note 15 as
a payable.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the liability s caleulated using current pay
rates and projected fulure increases in those rates and includes related employee on-costs, The estimates are adjusted
for the probability of the employee remaining in Council’s employment or other associated employment which would
result in Council being required to meet the liability. Adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit
earned to date, and the result is discounted to present value. The interest rates altaching to Commonwealth Government
guaranteed securities at the reporting date are used to discount the estimated future cash outflows to their present value,
This liahility is reported in Note 18 as a provision.

(ab) Reserves

Assel Revaluation Surplus

The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in value of property, plant and equipmenl thal
do not result from the use of those assets. Net incremental changes in the carrying value of classes of non-current assels

since their initial recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluation surplus. Increases and decreases on revaluation are
offsel within a class of assels.

Where a class of assets |5 decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offsel first against the amount remaining in the assel
revaluation surplus it respect of that class, Any excess is trealed as an expense.

When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of that asset is retained in the revaluation surplus
and not transferred to retained surplus.

(ac) Financial Instruments

Council recognises a financial asset or financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, Council
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Council has categorised the financial assets and financial iabilities held at balance date as follows:

Financial Assels Categorisation

Cash and cash equivalents Financial assets available for sale {af cost)
Receivables Loans and receivables (at amortised cost)
Fimancial Liabilities Categorisation

Payables Financial liability (at cost)

Borrowings Financial liability (at amortised cost)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately, offsetting has not been applied.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities must be estimated in a way that permits it to be compared with its carrying
amount., Disclosure of fair value is nol presented when the carrying amount is a reasanable approximation of fair value.
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The fair value of financial instruments is determined as follows:

- The Fair values of cash and cash equivalenis and non-interest bearing monetary financial assets and financial liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts and are not disclosed separately,

- The Fair values of borrowings, as disclosed in the noles o the accounls, is determined by reference to published price
quotations in an active market and by reference to pricing models and valuation technigues. It reflects the value of the
debt if Council repaid it in full at balance date. As it is the intention of Council to hold its borrowings for their full term,
no adjustment provision is made in these accounts. Refer to Note 17.

- The fair value of other monetary financial assets and linancial liabilities is based on markel prices where a market exists,
or is determined by discounting expected fulure cash flows by the current interest rate for financial assets and liabilities
with similar risk profiles,

- The lair value of trade receivables and payables is assumed o approximale their nominal value less estimated credit
adjustmenis,

- The fair value of prepayments is represented by the book value as the period of time to consumption is short and there
are no rates involved in the calculation, therefore they are not disclosed separately.

- Available for sale financial assets are measured at cost as fair value cannot be reliably measured, therefore no fair value
is disclosed.

Loans payable are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fulure cash paymenls or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument.

Gains and losses on the early redemplion of borrowings are recorded in the Stalement of Comprehensive Income as
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Council has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
far at least 12 months after the balance date.

Financial risk management

Council minimises ils exposure to financial risk in the following ways:

Investments in financial assets are only made where those assets are with a bank or other financial institution in Australia
and are for a period of less than one year; and Council does not invest in derivatives or other investments of a speculative

nature,

When Council barrows, it borrows from the Queensland Treasury Corporation. Borrowing by Council is constrained by the
provisions of the Statutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Acl 1982,

Details of financial instruments and Lthe associated risks are shown at Nole 26.

{ad) Change in Accounting Policy, Accounting Estimates and Correction of Errors

Under AASE 108 Accounting Policies, Chonges in Accounting Estimates and Errors, where there are material adjustmenls
to the measurement of opening assets and liabilities as a consequence of changes in accountling policies, accounting
estimates or corrections of error, these have been disclosed in Note 27.

(ae) Change in Comparatives

The comparatives in the Property Plant and Equipment Mote 12 have been amended to reflect the reclassification of classes
of Property Plant and Equipment in 2014.

(af) National Competition Policy
Council has reviewed its activities to identify its business activities, Details of these activities are disclosed in Nole 30,
{ag) Retained Surplus

In reference to the comparative figures for the year ended 30 June 2013, this represents the amount of Council's net funds
not set aside in reserves to meet specific fulure needs.
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Kote 2 Revenue and Other Income 2014 2013
S000 S000
{a) Rates, levies and charges
- General rates 160,114 151,532
- Special rates . 176
« Refuse and recycling utility charges 18,761 17,757
- Water and wastewater ulility charges 166,616 156,498
- Less discounts (20,831) (19,6800
= Less pensioner and other remissions {9,290) (9,590)
Total rates and utilities revenue 315.3;!_ 29-‘:;9;_
(k) Fees and charges
- Regulatory fees and charges 9,090 BG83
- Commercial lees and charges 15,354 14,729
Total fees and charges 20464 23,412
fc) Interest received

Interest received from:

- financial institutions 3,993 3.225%

- other persons 1,475 1,516

Total interest received 5,668 4,741
(d) Other income

- Other income 13,068 14,762

Total other Income 13,068 14,762
{e) Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

Recurrent

« Contributions received for operaling purposes 1,838 1,941

« Subsidies and grants received for operating purposes 21,772 33,673

Total grants, subsidies, contributions and donations ) 13,610 3&,;11
1] Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

Capital

- Contributions recelved for capital purposes 34,808 46,430

- Subsidies and grants received for capital purposes 19,671 36,886

Total grants, subsidies, contributions and donations G4,479 iils.] 16
4] Cantribution of assets

Capital

- Fair value gain on contributions of assets A6, 627 51,380

« Impairment losses on properly, plant and equipment reversed 64 266

Total gain on disposal of capital assels - &6.{'.? ';Lﬁ-r.ﬁ_-

Tatal Revenue and Other income o 483,130 G0E, 184
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Hote 3 Expenses 2014 2013
S000 S000

(a) Depreciation
« Buildings 7,279 6,586
« Plant and equipment 12,962 15,270
« Landfill 1,088 1,659
» Land improvements 7664 10,667
- Transport netwark 26,666 23,528
- Fixed Plant 17,041 17,007
- Pipe network 23,536 22,591
- Dams & Weirs 3,858 3,070
« Heritage and Cultural B2
Total depreciation expense wu:fu"r: 100,378
Amartisation
- Software assels 1.936 1,011
Total amortisation expense 1.936 1,011
Total depreciation and amortisation i 102142 101,389

(&b Finance costs

Interest expense on financial fabilities not at fair value

- Interest and finance charges on loans from Rnancial institutions 221,388 23,727

= Unwinding of discounted provisions B10 1,153

Total finance expense 23,198 24,880
[c) Other expenses

= Impairment charge - trade receivables 07 B9

- Inventary Fair value write-down 213 37V

- (ther expenses 3,559 2,048

Total other expenses 3.979 2,514
(d) Capilal Expenses

Loss on sale of capital assels 9,358 39,166

Revaluation decrement of Property, Plant and Equipment 6B 912

Tolal capital éxpenses 78270 19,166
e} Rental expense on operating leases

- minimum lease payments #7 58
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{f} Significant Revenue and Expenses

impacted the Townsville local government area during the last 5 years,

Event Year
Tropical Cyclone Ita 2004
Tropical Cyclone Dylan 2014
Heawy Rainfall and Flooding, Northern & FNOQ 2012
Tropical Cyclone Yasi 201
Mensoon Flooding 2010
Tropical Cyclone ONga 2010
Tropical Cyclone Neville 2010
Tropical Cyclone Ului 2010
Tropical Cyclone Paul 2010

Council’s net result for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 Includes the effect of the following deciared disaster events that have

The Queensland Government provides financial assistance to disaster affected communities in Queensland through the Natural Disasters
Relief and Recovery Arrangements program (NDRRA), jointly funded by the Australian Government, The funding is avallable subject to
strict guidelines and anly lor declared disaster events. In 201314 NDRRA relief measures were activated by the Queensland Government
for Council, with respect to Counter Disaster Operations for the 2014 events, as well as Restoration of Essential Public Assets for Tropical
Cyclone fta. At reporting date, eligible restoration expenditure on Council’s transport network as a result of damage sustained from
Tropical Cyclone Ita had not reached the trigger point value for funding, while claims for Counter Disaster Operations are yel to be lodged.

The following significant revenue and expense items related to HORRA events, included in the net result, are relevant in explaining the

financial performance of Council for the period.

Recovery of expenditure incurred for NDRRA purposes:
Grant funding received for operating expenditure incurred for NORRA purposes

Grant funding received for capital expenditure incurred for NORRA purposes
Total grant revenue received for recovery of capital and operating expenditure
Expenditure for costs incurred for NDRRA purposes:

Operating expenditure incurred for NDRRA purposes

Capital expenditure incurred for NORRA purposes

Total expenditure incurred for NDRRA purposes

Total grant funding die to Council for NDRRA purposes and recognised as a receivable
as al balance date,

Total expenditure by Council for NDRRA purposes recognised as a payable as at
balance date,

Further infarmation on the NDORRA regarding contingent asset is stated at Note 22,

Hote 4 Auditors” Remuneration

Remuneration of the auditor of Council for:

- auditing the financial report

TOWHSVILLE CITY COUNDN - ANNUKL REPDRI 701371

2014 2013

5000 5000
14,975 21,856
6,472 12,537
21,447 44,383
7.131 21,402
9,794 7,719
16,925 49,11

887

149 4,054

2014 2013

S000 5000
206 302
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Hote 5

(@)

(b)

Note &

Note 7

Cash and Cash Equivalents Nate 2014 2013

5000 S000
Cash al bank and on hand 1,324 491
Short-term bank deposits - at call 95,461 66,819
Short-term bank deposits - held to maturity . 10,500
Total cash at bank and an hand 26 96,785 7810
Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to items in the Statement of
Financial Position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 96,785 77810

96,785 77ELID

Cash not available for general use

Council cash and cash equivatents are subject to internal and external restrictions that limit amounts
available for discretionary or fulure use. These include:

Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date relate to the following cash assets;

Unspent contributions, government grants and subsidies 5408 9,077

Risk exposure

Council’s exposure 1o interest rate risk is discussed in Rote 26. The maximum exposure to credit risk al the reposting
date is the carrying amount of each class of cash and cash equivalents menlioned above,

Investments 2014 2013
S000 5000

Term deposits maturing beyond 9o days paying interest rates of 3.65% 10 3.90% 10,000

Thie carrying value of Investments is equal to lair value, 10,000

The Council's exposure to interest rate risk is disclosed in note 26

Trade and Other Recelvables Note 2014 03
S000 S000
CURRENT
Trade receivahiles - rates and wtilities 11,677 11.050
Allowance for impairment of recelvables - rates and utilities Flai (113) 177
Trade receivables - fees and charges 5,704 9,086
Allowance for impairment of receivables - fees and charges 7ladii) (591} (584)
T Y7 19,475
Dther recelvables - term receivables 9 9
Other receivables - other deblors and accrued revenue 18,534 23,595
Accrued interest 17% 93
s 23,697
Tatal current trade and other receivahles s Es_ o f-_'L:I i2

TERSHANVILLE DiF Y COURCIL - ANGUAL RIPORT 203 1/14 1§




QAO
cedified statemenis

A year ol arhlevement, Planning, delivering & progressing

TOWRNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
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Hote 2014 2013
5000 S000
NON-CURRENT

Trade receivables - rates and utilities 4,936 6,079
4,936 6,079
Other receivables - term receivables 5,069 59
5,069 Y
Total non-current trade and other receivables 10,005 6,138

The prior year current and non current split for trade receivables - rates and utilities has been adjusted to be consistent
with the methodology applied in the current year, This adjustment has been reflected in the prior year by a reclassification
of $3,55 3,000 between the current and non current portion of trade receivables rates and utilities. Refer to note 27(a).

Trade and other receivables, excluding other term receivables, are non-interest bearing loans and generally on 30 day
terms. IF collection of the amounts is expected in one year or less they are classified as current assets, Il not, they are
presented as non-current assels. Interest is charged on oulstanding rates and utilities at a rale of 1% per annum, No
interest is charged on other deblors,

Other term receivables relate to advances made Lo various not-for profit community organisations. These loans arise from
time 1o Ume and are subject to negotiated interest rates, The credif risk on these loans |s considered low.

(a) Allowanece For Impairment of Receivables

An allowance for impairment is recognised when there is objective evidence that an individual trade or term receivable
is impaired. These amounts have been included in other expenses, Movements in accumulated impairment losses is as

lallows:
Opening Charge for Amounls Unused Closing
Balance the Year Written Off amount Balance
reversed
o1 July 2013 30 june 2014
s000 S000 5000 5000 S000
{i) Current trade receivables - rates and utllities i 100 (60 (4} 113
(1] Current trade recemvables - fees and charges S84 455 (104) (348) 531
- 661 559 (164) (352) 704
Opening Charge for Amaunls Unused Closing
Balance the Year Written OfF amount Balance
reversed
o1 July 2012 30 June 2013
5000 S000 5000 S000 S000
(i) Current trade receivables - rates and utilities 247 L7 [2459) [1:1] Fy
(it Current trade recelvables - fees and charges 636 gt (112} (337) 584
T e 394 (361) (385) 661

o | TOWKSNUGE CV1Y COUSEN - ANNUAL REFORT 2013/ 14



certified statements

A wiad 0f achinvemen]| Planning. delivering & progenssing

TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Credit risk - Trade and Receivables

Council has no significant concentration of credil risk with respect to any single counterparty or enfity of counterparties other than
those receivables specifically provided for and mentioned within Note 26. The class of assets described as trade and other receivables is
considered to be the main source of credit risk 1o the entity.

The following table details Council’s trade and other receivables exposed (o credil risk (prior te collateral and other credit enhancements)
with ageing analysis and impairment provided for theseon, Amounts are considered as ‘past due® when the debt has not been settled
within the terms and conditions agreed between the entity and the customer or counterparty to the transaction, Receivables that are past
due are assessed for iImpairment by ascertaining solvency of the debtors and are provided for where there are specific circumstances
Indicating that the debt may not be fully repaid to Council.

The balances of receivables that remaln within Initial trade terms [as detailed in the table) are considered to be of high credit quality.

2004 Gooss Amount | Pastdue and | Within inilial Past due but not impasred (days overdwe)
impaired trade terms —
130 160 G190 0
Consolidated Consolidated | Consolidated Consolidated | Consclidated | Consolidated | Consolidated
Balances Balances Balances Balanges Balances Balances Balanges
Trade receivables 12,37 (708) 6,362 [T a7 34 14,166
Other receivabdes - Term 5078 . 5078 . = g B
Other receivabbes - Other 18,708 18,709
Total 46,104 [704) 0049 LR a7 ELT 14,166
FLTE] Gaoss Amount | Pastdwe and | Within inilial Past due but not impaired (days overduwe)
impaired trade teqms
30 11-60 G140 Lirle]
Consolidated | Consolidated | Consolidated | Consolidated | Consolidated | Consolidated | Consoldated
Ealances Balantes Balances Balantes Balances Balances Balances
Trade receivables 6215 {661} BA4l BN 569 796 15,479
Other receivables - Term 68 : E8 . . . '
Other receivables - Other 13,685 23,688
Total 49,971 fe61) 32197 g 569 156 15,429
Hote 014 013
S000 $000
{b) Financial Assels classified as loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables
« Total Current 35,395 43,172
- Tatal Non-Current 10,005 6,138
Financial assels 26 45,600 49,310
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note B Inventories 2014 2013
5000 5000
CLURRENT
Raw materials and stores 1,261 1,605
1,761 1,60%
(i) Assigning cosls to inventories

The costs of individual itlems of inventory are determined using weighted average costs,

(i) Amounis recognised in profit and loss
Write downs of inventaries 1o net realisable value recognised as an expense during the year ended 30 June 2014 amounted (o $213,000

[2o13: $3F:.wo}. The expense has been Included in "Other expenses’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This write down was
@ result of the closure of nursery operations.

Note g Mon-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale 2014 2013
5000 S000
Mon-current assets held for sale:

Land and Buildings

Current - expected Lo be sold within 12 months . 718
Non-current - expected (o be sold after 12 months - G.5955%
5,713

A review of assets held for sale disclosed no land and buildings that will be or have been sold in the 2o1s financial year (2014: $718,000)
Council does have surplus land that may be available for sale from time to time, but which a1 balance date has not heen specifically
excluded from Coundil or public use,

Hote 10 Investments Accounted for using the Equity Method Note 2014 2013
5000 5000

Interests in joint venture 11 23,905 25,625

23,905 25,625

Hote 11 Joint Venture

{2) Interast in Joint Yentures

A joint venture partnership exists belween the Perpetual Trustees Queensland Limited as trustee of the Breakwater Island Trust,
and the Townsvilie City Council, The joinl wenture parties are associated in an unincorporated joint venture known as the Towmsyille
Breakwaler Entertainment Centre foint Vienture, The purpose of the joint venture is (o design, develop, construct, commission, operate
and own the Entertainment Centre,

Council has a 79.8% interest in the Townsville Breakwater Entertainment Centre Joinl Yenture, whose principal aclivilies are the
provision of a venture and ancillary services for the conduct of conventions, eshibitions, sports and entertainment events. Unless
otherwise agreed in wiiting between the joint venturers, the joint venture is limited to the purposes and activities specified in the
Townswille Breakwater Entertainment Centre Act 1991,

The joint venture has entered into an agreement with the then Trustee of Breakwater Island Trust and Breakwater |sland Limited for the
managemen! of the Townsville Entertainment & Convention Centre. Pursuant to the terms of the Management Agrecment, Breakwater
stand Trust will indemnify the jaint venture frem any amount by which defined costs exceed operating revenue. Defined costs extlude
general rates and land tax, replacement of fixed assets and major repairs. Breakwates lstand Trust is entitled to repayment of any
indemnity pald in any previous year out of net operating surpluses of the Entertainment Centre.

| TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL - aRlauay BPPGRT 2013 i
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The Townsville Breakwater Entertainment Centre joint venture is not considered a controlled entity because, in accordance with the
Townsviile Breakwater Entertainment Centre Acl 1991, all decisions of the Management Committee governing the operations of the joint
venture require a unanimous decision, except for decisions relating (o the giving of notices to the aperater about audit qualifications
relating to the joint venture financial statements, or in the case of a default event, decisions to give to the defaulting party notice of
intention to terminate the agreement,

Council was advised during the year that the value of Praperty, Plant and Equipment in prier years® financial statements had been
revised. Council has recognised a loss of $1,720,902 in the period ended 30 june 2014 in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of
which $161,277 relates to prior year adjustments,

(b) Share of the Net Assets Employed in the Joint Venture 2014 013
5000 5000

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 486 395
Trade and other receivables 17 13
Inventories 32 ri)
Other assets #i
Tatal current assels 539 435

MON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 23,980 25,576

Tolal non-current assets 23,980 25,576

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 571 355
Total current liabilities 571 355

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Prowisions 43 il

Total non-current liabilities 43 31

Hel interest in joint venture 23,905 25,625

OWHSVILLE TIY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REPORT 2013084
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 |UNE 2014

Hote 13 Intangible Assets 2014 2013
S000 5000
Software assets
Cost 24,852 22,763
Accumulated amortisation (12,443) (10,507)
Total software assels 12,409 12,256
Software
assets
S000
Year ended 30 June 2014
Balance at the beginning of year 12,256
Additions 2,089
Disposals
Amortisation charge {1,934)
Closing value al 30 june 2014 12,409

Year ended 30 June 2013

Balance at the beginning of year 5,081
Additions 8,186
Disposals

Amoilisation charge (1.011)
Closing value at 30 June 2013 12,256

Intangible assets have finlte wseful lives. The current amortisation charges for intangible assets are included under
depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Note 14 Other Assets 2014 013
S000 S000
CURRENT 2,155 3,387
Prepayments 2,155 3.327
NOMN-CURRENT 4,988 ) 10%
Prepayments Q.Q‘EE_ 105

Non-current prepayments are cantraclual amounts paid for capital expenditure on Council owned assets under a long
term operating contract, where the capilal expenditure has not yel occurred but is anticiapted to be incurred over the
cantract lerm. Shortfalls or excess capital expenditure ar the end of the contract term will be transferred to or from
contract operational expense,

0 TOWNSVIELE CITY COUNCH - SNNUAL REFORT J013/14
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Hote 15 Trade and Other Payables Hote 014 03
5000 S000
CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities
Trade payables 21,022 18,275
Annual Leave 16,549 15,189
Sundry payables and accrued expenses 17,750 17,187
I 55,321 50,651

HON-CURRENT

Sundry payables and accrued expenses 1.973

1,973 .

Financial liabllities at amortised cost classified as trade and other payables

Trade and other payables

= Total Current 55,321 50,651
— Total Non-current 1.973

Financial liabilities as trade and other payables 26 57,294 iﬂ.a

Management changed the classification of annual leave Lo move $15,185,000 from the current provisions o current trade
and other payables, Council does not have unconditional right to defer settlement of annual leave liabilities for at least
12 months. As a result the non-current portion of the liability is still discounted, bul is classified as current, Refer lo note

27la).
Hote 16 Other Current Lizbilities 2014 2013
5000 S000
Unearned revenue 2,953 995
1,953 095
Nole 17 Borrowings Note 2014 013
S000 S000
CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities
Loans 19,600 19,983
Total current barrowings 19,600 19,983
MOMN-CURRENT
Unsecured labilities
Loans 314,233 133,842
Tolal mon-current borrowings 314,233 333,842

Total boreowings 26 333,833 353,825
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

(a) Loans

The total loan facility has been provided toa limitof$333,833,256. The loans are unsecured and are all in Australian dollar denominated
amounts with interest being expensed as it accrues. Borrowings have been recognised as a liability for the year ended 30 June 2014
at their carrying value, No assels have been pledged as security by Council for any liabilities, however all loans are guaranteed by the
Queensland Government,

The fair value of $388, 310,916 represents the value of the loans if Council repaid the loans as at 30 June 2014, As it is the intention of
Council to hold the loans for its term, no provision is required 1o be made in these accounts,

The interest rates of loans barrowings range from 5 87% to 9.72% for book value rates, Based on the current level of repayment of the
book value debt, the expected term of non-current debt varies from s months to 17 years.

Principal @nd interest repayments are made guarterly, There have been no defaults or breaches of the toan agreement during the

periad.
(b) Undrawn borrowing facilities 014 013
5000 S000
Unrestricted access was available at balance date to undrawn facilities listed below:
Bank overdralt facility 500 500
Credit card facility 1,364 2.000
Loan facility % 10,000
1,864 12,500
Hote 18 Provisions 2014 2013
S000 S000
CURRENT
Self Insurance 1,926 1,065
Landfill Restoration 5,043 17,354
Employee Benefits 1.817 1,524
Other 150 L
9,136 20,360
HON-CURENT
Self Insurance 4,665 3,045
Landfll Restoration 19,266 8,461
Employee Benefits 17,214 14,710
Other 1,285 FRLY
42,430 28,357
(a) Provision for Self Insurance

A provision of $6,591,000 has been recognised, for self-insured risks relating to workers' compensation claims, based on independent
actuarial advice of the estimated liability at 3oth June 2014,

(b) Provision fer Landfill Restoration

A provision of 524,300,463 has been recognised as the present value of the estimated cost of restoring Council’s landfill sites to the
candition reqguired by the licence at the end of their useful life, The total estimated cost at 30 june 2014 15 $26,5 77,593 for the land Al
sites, These costs are expected o be incurmed between 2015 and 2047, New site plans and operational strategies have been completed
for each of the landfill areas except for Picnic Bay and Majors Creek, This has resulted in 2 change in the timing of capping works in the
future and reclassification of current and non-carrent provision liabilities, Plans will neccessarily evolve in the future as Council meets
best practice operational efficiency and regulatory reguirements, whilst endeavouring to meet community expectations

Ve | TOWRSVILLE CITY COURC « akNUAL REPORD 2011714
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3] Provision for Employee Benefits

A provision of $19,030,163 has been recognised for employee entitlements relating to fong service leave, where Council does not
expect all employees to lake the lull amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months. In calculating the present
value of future cash flows in respect of these leave entitlements, the probability of leave being laken is based on historical data. The
measurement and recognition ceiteria relating to employee benefits has been included in Nole 1{aa) to this report,

(d) Provision for Other Long-term Liabilities

A provision of 31,635,000 has been recognised as the present value of the estimated maintenance and operating cosls relating to
cerfain areas of which Council is responsible for the Nelly Bay Harbour. Council has a present obligation to incur these costs due to the
issuing of special rate levies billed to the residents of the precinct, These levies are specifically received for the purposes of funding
these costs. The special rate has been set at 2ero for the last two years as council bas deemed the provision suﬁtld nt Tor the works
required under the works plan for the next 10 years, The works plan is reviewed annually. The works area is subject Lo GBRMPA and
native tille constraints and the work plan may require permits at the time the work is to be completed.

(e) Movements in provisions
Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than employee benefits are set out below:

Self Landfill Employee Other Tatal
Insurance  Restoration Benefils

5000 S000 S000 S000 S000
Balance at beginning of financial year 4,110 25,815 16,234 2,558 48,717
Additional provisions raised during year 5,531 4,339 4,077 {977} 12,970
Amounts used (3,149 (6,434) (1.670) (32) (11,284)
Unused amounts reversed
Increase in provision due to unwinding of o9 2 389 » 810
discount
Increase/ (decrease) in provision due to . 167 . Bh 351
change in discount rate
Balance at end of financial year 6,591 24,309 19,030 1,635 51,566

Hote 19 Asset Revaluation Surplus 2014 2013
5000 5000

Movements in the assel revaluation surplus were as follows:

Balance al beginning of financial year QB3 845 949 856
Land (16,552)
Land Improvements (16,877}
Hertage & Cultural {173}
Fixed Plant 44,585}
Dams and Welrs 23,960
Pipe Metworks (45,811) 35,497
Transpart Network (156,874}
Impairment: 1,508 11,508
Batance at end of financial year 688,442 983,845

Note 2o Reserves

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal restrictions that fimit the amopunt that is available for
discretionary or future use, In prior years Council accounted for these restrictions using a system of reserves.

On 25 |une 2013, Council passed a resolution to close all existing reserves and transter balances to retained earnings. The internal
restrictions that have been placed on Council’s cash and cash equivalents are now disclosed in Naote g,

CANSVILE CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL REEORT JETiLe § 0



QAO
A yeat ol avhisement: Planning, delivering & pragiessing cerified stalements

TOWNSWVILLE CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Hote 21 Commitments for Expendilure 2014 013
S000 000
(a) Operating Lease Commitments
Mon-canceliable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the 2,451 31

financial statements

Payable — minimum lease payments

- not kater than 12 months 628 G660
- between 12 manths and § years 1,814 2,440
- greater than g years L 11
2,451 3,111
() Capital Expenditure Commitments
Capital expenditure commitments contracted for:
Aplin Weir Rehabilitation Project : 5
Blakeys Crossing 6,115
Dalrymple Road Bridge 104 746
Douglas Reservoir . 2,163
Energy Performance Confract 835
FEAM Systems Upgrade - 225
Howill 5t Drainage Upgrade 1,149
Jezzing Barracks Redevelopment 7ii 16,116
LED Public Lighting Project 533
¥ 1 Sewer Pipe Rehabilitation 206 931
[air s Stuart Landfill Capping . 3,979
Tomy Ireland External Scoreboard 1,012
Towmsville [nternational Sports Cenfre . 33
Towmisville Recreational Boating B25 533
Water Treatment Plant Refurbishment 35,008 36,945
(ther 2067 2LATT
48,607 58,163
Payable:
- not later than 12 months 15,383 73,055
« hetween 12 months and 5 years 12,938 8,396
- greater than g years 20,286 26,712

48,607 58.163
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

(g

Hote 22

(a)

{b)

Other Expenditure Commitments

Other expendituse commitments contracted for:

Airconditioning Services

Cash Carrying Services

Cleaning Services

Environmental Services

Fixed Asset Revaluations

Lifeguard Services

MORRA Project Management Services

Parks Maintenance Services

Port of Towensville Limited

Records Management and Storage

Road Network Maintenance Services
Security Services

Spansorships and Community Contributions
Townsville Recreational Boating Park

Water Trealmenl Plant Maintenance Services

Other Maintenance Services
Payabie:
- ol Later than 12 months

- between 12 months and 5 years

- greater than g years

Contingencies

Contingent Assels

Fp 2013
000 5000
252
130 120
5919 2.012
1200 1,200
422
2152 2,152
FL] a8
9.643 2334
2,420
210
1.62% 800
5191 601
182 131
3471
2,260 2,260
751 1,053
33,227 71,611
18,732 65,435
14,465 6,089
26 8/
33,337 71,611

Estimates of the potential financial effect of conlingent assels thal may become receivable:

Claims

The Queensiand Government provides financial assistance to disaster affected communities in Queensland through the
Matural Disaster Reliel and Recovery Arrangements program (HORRA), jointly funded by the Austrafian Government. The
claims for available funding are subject to strict guldelines and only for declared disaster events.

Council has completed works relating to the 2011 and 2012 declared disaster events on local infrastructure, At reporting
date, the recovery ol this expenditure has not been lully recognised as a recelvable, as the recovery is dependent upon
the outcome of the NDRRA claim process. Councll estimates approximately $5, 700,000 of NDRRA funding to be received
in 201415 under this program for the 2011 and 2012 disaster events.

Contingent Liabilities

Estimates of the potential Anancial effect of contingent labilities that may

become payable:

Guaranlees

Workers compensation self-insurance guaranlees

TOWHNSVIILE

2014
S000

5,060
5,060

Y {CuNCIL - ARNURL REFD

2013
Soo00

5_1!!_;&.?
5,802
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

State WorkCover authorities require guarantees against workers' compensation selfinsurance liabilities. The guarantee
is based on independent actvarial advice of the estimated liability, Guarantees held at each balance date do not
always equal the liability at these dates due to delays in |ssuing the guarantees, An actuarial assessment of Council
workers compensation claims liability performed on 29 July 2014 has estimated the required self-insurance guaraniee
be $8,238,000. As at the date of this report, Council is in the process of arranging the required [ncrease in the bank
guarantee. A provision of $6,591.000 (2013: $4,110,000) has been recognised, for sell-insured risks relating to the
workers' compensation claims at balance date, Refer o Note 18.

Claims

Council is @ member of the local government mutual sell-insurance pool, LGM Queensiand. In the event of the pool being
wound up or it is unable to meet its debis as they fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any accumulated loss will
be met by the individual pool members in the same proportion as their contribution is to the tatal pool contributions in
respect ta any year that a deficit arises,

Al the time of preparation of this report, the financial statements for 30 June 2014 of LGM Queensland were not available.
As at 30 June 2013 the financial statements reported an accumulated surplus of 322,557,143 and it was not anticipated
any liability would arise.

Hote2z  Operating Functions

Function Information
Identification of reportable functions

Council has identified its operating functions based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by management in
assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources.

Councilis primarily managed on the basis of product and sesvice offerings since the diversification of Councils operations
inherently have different risk profiles and perfarmance assessment criteria, Operaling functions are therefore determined
on the same basis.

From July 2003, repertable functions disciosed are based on aggregating operating functions where the segments are
considered to have similar service characteristics.

Opearating Functions by Core Service

Core Services
0] Community and Cultural Services

Includes community services, libraries, art galleries, civic theatre, cultural, recreational facilities, health, integrated
sustainabilily services and parking regulation,

(i) Enabling Services

Includes human resources, payooll, knowledge management, corporate communications, legal services, corporate
governance, customer service, fleet services, corporate asset management and finance.

(i) Environmental & Sustainabilily Services

Dellvery of specialised environmental health services to community including food safety, environmental protection,
dangerous goods, public kiealth, vector control and health promoticn,

(iv) Planning and Developmenl Services
Includes town planning, development assessment, economic development and special projects
] Public Infrastruciure
Includes roads, drainage, infrastructure planning and investigations, urban redevelopment and parks
i) Solid Waste Management
Includes refuse collection and disposal, and landfll operations and management,
{vii) Waste Water Services
Includes Council's wastewater disposal and treatment plants.
(] Water Services

Includes operation, construction and maintenance of Councils water storage, treatment, distribution and reticulation
operations.
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Core Services group by entity

The Councll has identified its operating core services and grouped them by entity based on the internal reports that are reviewed and
used by management in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources and assels, The core services above are
grouped inta the following entities:

Rest of Council (i} to v}
Townsville Waste Services {wid and fvii)
Townsville Water {wiitd

Basis of accounting for purposes of reporting by operating functions

(a) Accounting policies adopted

Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported to the Chiel Executive Officer as the chief decision maker with respect to
operating functions are determined in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent to those adopted in the
annual financial statements of Council.

(k) Function assels

Assels are used across mulliple functions, Assets are allocaled o an entity that receives the majerily of the ecanomic
value from that asset. In the majority of instances, function assets are clearly identifiable on the basis of their nature and
physical lacation.

{i) Function performance - Core Service

Year Ended 30 June 2014
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

(i) Function perfermance - Division

Function performance by division is shown below to provide a comparison of function performance 1o [ast year, Assels used across
multiple functions are no longer tracked by division, assets below are grouped by entity in accordance with the service being delivered

above,
Divisions
(i) Townswville Water
Includes operation, construction and maintenance of Council's water storage, treaiment, distribution and reticulation
operations and Council’s wastewater disposal and treatment plants,
(i) Townsville Waste
Includes refuse collection and disposal, and landfll operations and management.
(i) Community and Environment Services
Includes community services, libraries, art gallerles, civic theatre, cultural, recreational facilities, health, integrated
sustainability services and parking regulation.
{iv) Planning and Development Services
Includes town planning, development assessment, economic development and special projects,
1] Infrastructure Services
Includes roads, drainage, infrastructure planning and investigations, urban redevelopment, fleet services, parks and
corporate assel management.
i) Corporale Services
Includes human resources, payroll, knowledge management, corporate communications, legal services, corporate
governance, customer service and finance,
Year Ended 30 June 2014
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Assels
L=z hysets M'“h_
soors | oo
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Note 2q  Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow (outflow) from 2014 013
operating activities

5000 $000

Net result for the year 28,975 897,320
Depreciation 100,206 100,378
Amartisation 1,936 1,011
Met impairment loss on properly, plant and equipment [6&) [266)
Met loss on sale of non-current assets 9,358 38,166
Revaluation deceement of proparty, plant and equipment 68,912
Contributions, subsidies and grants received for construcling assets {54,479) {83,316)
Fair value gain on contributions of assets (56,627) {51,380)
Share of joint venture entity net profit after income tax and dividends 1,721 3,286
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
[Increase)/decrease in trade and term receivables 8,920 10,786
(ncrease)fdecrease in inventories 344 719
[Increase) fdecrease in other asseds (3.711) {2,505}
Increasef(decrease) in trade payables and accruals G E44 (17,0100
Increasef{decrease) in provisions 2,849 512
Incecase/{decrease) in other liabilities 1,958 (1,239

Het cash flows from operating activities ) 126,942 o7 459

Note 25 Events After the Reporting Period
There were no material adjusting events after the balance date.

Note 2& Fimancizl Risk Management

Councli’s fnancial instruments consist mainly of deposits with financial institutions, local meney market instruments,
shorl-term investments, accounts receivable and payable.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASE 130 Financial nstruments:
Recognition and Measuremen! as detalled In the accounting palicies to these financial statements, are as follows:-

Hote 014 2013
S000 Sooo
Financial Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 5 96,785 77810
Investiments & 10,000
Loans and receivables b} 45400 49,310

Total Financial Assels 152,185 127,120

POWHANILE CIFy COUNCIL - ANTUAL REPDRT 2011714 1 &
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Note 2014 2013
5000 5000
Financial Liabilities
Financial labilities at amortised cost
- Trade and other payables 15 57,294 50,651
- Borrowings 17 333,833 353,825
Total Financial Liabilities a7 A04,476

Financial Risk Management Policies

Exposure to financial risks is managed in accordance with Council approved policies on financial risk management. These policies
focus on managing the volatility of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial perfarmance of
Council.

Specific Financial Risk Exposures and Management
Council uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include sensitivity analysis in
the case of interest rate risk, ageing analysis in the case of credit risk and maturity analysis in respect of liquidity risk.

(a) Credil risk

Credit risk exposure refers to the situation where Council may incur financial loss as a result of another party (o a financial
instrument failing to discharge their obligations,

In the case of rates receivables, Council has the power to sell the property torecover any defaulted amounts, In effect this
power protects Council against credit risk in the case of these debts.

Interest is charged on outstanding rates at a rale of 1% per annum, There is no concentration of credit risk for rates and
utility charges, fees and other receivables,

Credit Risk Exposures
Council is exposed to credit sk through its investments with the Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) and deposits
held with commercial banks. The QTC Cash Fund is an assel management portfolio that invests with a wide variety of high

credit rating counterparties. Deposits are capital guaranieed. These deposits are bearing a floating interest rate of 3.38%
as al 30 )une 2014.

Other investments are held with highly rated and regulated financial institutions and whilst not capital guaranteed, the
likelihood of a credit failure is remote. All investments are in domestic currency denomination.

The maximum exposure 1o credil risk at balance date in refation to each class of recognised financial asset is the gross
carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any pravisions for impairment.

Ho coltateral is held as security relating to the financizl assets held by Council,

The following table represents Council's maximum exposure to credit risk:

Hote 2014 w013
5000 S000
Cazh and cash equivalents
« AAA Rated
- Ay Rated 95,460
~AM: Rated 1,275 72,266
«Ae Rated . 2,000
« A= Rated - 3,000
- Non Rated 50 Shdy
5 - SI‘E?ES I?:'r' 810 '
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Receivables
- Trade receivables - rates
« Trade receivables - fees and charges
- Term receivables

- Mher receivables

(b} Liquidity Risk

2014 2013

S000 5000
16,500 17,052
5,113 8,502
5.078 68
18,709 23,688
45,400 49,310

Liguidity risk refers to the situation where Council may encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with Anancial
liabilities, Council is exposed to llguidity risk through Its trading in the normal course of business and borrowings from

the QTC for capital warks.

Council manages 15 exposure (o lguidity risk by maintaining sufficient undrawn facilities, both short and long term, 1o
cater for unexpected volatility in cash flows. These facilities are disclosed in Note 17.

The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by Council in @ format consistent with what might
be provided to managemenl. The amounts disclosed in the maturily analysis represent the contractual undiscounted

cash flows at batance date:

Financial liability and financial asset maturity analysis

Withis i Year Ate g yrars Cwer § yrary Total dontraciual Carrylag amaunt
cash Row

IR iy Iy oLy b qoay Fid T EL ] 014 FL-11 ]

£ooa $ooo §oon $ooa $ooo S §oon oo oo oo
l':mﬁ.l!mhrn:h Mewrs tealisable - o
Cash and rash equivalenit 46, 7H5 A W06, FES, 7B 1o, e, LT
I simands 10,000 §0,000 19,006
Trade, torm amd other receivables 35,395 KINFR 7.9 BagH 7,00 L] L5, 00 &% 400 TR
Total amfaipated inflows 2,180 11058 7975 E.138 2,010 3,185 (FFRET 145,184 157,420

Within 1 Yead e g years Over § vears Total cantracteal Canying amaamnl
cash Nlaw
FL ¥ by ELk ] L=t ElaE] ELR T $aij Fi-11 0 |
] ] Sace Soo0 %000 Soo0 $ooo focn $ooo §o00
Fimancisl Lisbiities <due fos payment

Bank oveidiafs and izans 40N L1398 152,748 155809 o ST A0ITH 403,257 445 684 333533 53525
Frade and other payabies 55,331 0,651 1973 SF.I04 LT 18| 5 7.aeh Lot
Tetal contractual eutfiows P EL FR059 VE&. P40 B LLE3R oLt AS0LTY 51-0.5‘” _!‘;.h-}j-;_ ;.."‘I.T:[I L0446
Les Bak overdeafty
Teal espected outhows 10 LT ERS ) & 740 153459 Lo R ] 3507 T Lo, 551 e85 330 BRI PR
Iml! boutNgesk [ inTiow on finanoal LN H TR aETAED Dhagany  igore3fd 3soarel ool 366 &Ep a7l ISR BFRBE
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(4] Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in marke! prices, such as Interest rates, will affect Council's income or the value of

its holdings of financial instruments,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

(i) Interest rate risk

Exposure ta interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial labilitles recognised at reparting date whereby a
future change In interest rates will affect future cash flows, In relation te QIC loans, Council holds generic debl pool
products which approsimate a fixed rate loan, Consequently, there is negligible impact on interest sensitivity from
changes in interest rates for generic debt pool borrowings. Howeves, Council is exposed Lo earnings volatility where there
are Moating rate instruments. Last year's balances have been restated to provide comparability.

Council does not undertake any hedging of interest rate risk.

(il Sensitivity Analysis

The foliowing interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what a reasonable possible change in interest rates (assumed o be
1%) would have on the profit and equity, based on the carrying values at the end of the reporting peried. The calculation
assumes that the change in interest rates would be held constant over the period. If the rales decreased by 1% the impaci
would be equal in amount in the reverse direction.

Net Carrylng Profit Equity
Sensitivity Analysis 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
$000 $000 $000 S000 . §000 $Dﬂ_q_ —
Financial assets 1,065 780 1,065 78D 1,065 7EO
Financial liabillties (8) 5 (8 i . @®
Increase to profit with 1% 1.087 7ED 1,057 780 1,057 78D
Increase in interest

Wote 2y Correction of error, revision of estimates and reclassifications

(a Reclassification of prior year figures 2013 Increase, 2013
I i (Detrease) (Restated)
S000 5000 5000

Staternent for financial position (extract)

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 46,725 {3.553) 43,172
Non-Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 2,585 3,553 6,138
Cureent Liabilities

Trade and other payables 35,462 15,189 50,651
Provisions 35,549 {15,189 20,360
Net Change

Change in reclassification of annual leave:

Management changed the classification of annual leave to move $15,18g,000 from current provisions to current trade and
other payables. Council does not have unconditional right to defer settiement of annual teave lizbilities for at least 12
maonths, A5 a resull the non-current portion of the liability is still discounted, but is dassified as current.

Change In reclassification of trade receivables - rates and utilities:

The prior year current and non current split for trade receivables - rates and utilities has been adjusted (o be consistent
with the methodology applied in the current year. This adjustment has beenreflected in the prior year by a reclassification
of §3,553,000 between the curfent and non current postion of trade receivabies - rates and utilities.

(b) Correction of error

Land asset fair value has been adjusted to reflect prior year errofs, AL the time of the amalgamation ffty.six parcels
of land were included as assets owned by Council, however Council was tiustee for that land and did nol own il The
errar was discovered when a comprehensive check, including inspection of each title, was performed as part of the zo1g
revaluation, That land is owmed by the Queensland Government, In addition, land was recorded a5 an asset where it had
been merged with other litles, in some cases decades ago, but the ariginal land parcel was nol disposed of as an asset
Other parcels of land had been transterred to the Queensland Government asland under roads. There was also a duplicate
aszel record and seven tittes owned but not previously recorded as assels, Al of the land involved is administered by
Council as either trustee or owner.
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30 June 2013 Increase/ 2013
(Decrease) (Restated)
S000 S000 S000

Statement of Financial Pesition (extract)
Haon-Current Assels
Property, plant and equipment 4,652,803 {32,492) 4,620,311
Equity
Retained surplus 3,390,521 (32,492) 3,358,029

{c) Movements between assel classes, revision of residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment.
Rasels Pravlous Class Currand Class Palas Basds of Cunent Basly of 2014
Measuremend Measurement Sapa

Car Marks ard pathwwys. Land esprovemanis Transport Hetwork Fair Walue Falr Yalue as per labie b= Hele a5
Wiirs Lianed imeprosements Dy amd Weirs FairValus Fair Yalue
Trestment plant structures, ofher buldngs Boiding, landhks Fined Manz, Heritage Fairvalus Fair ¥alus
Feepd Mard companents Pipe nebwark Fined Plans, Plant & Fair Valye Fair ¥alue, Cosl

Equipment

The revaluation af assets and the concurrent installation of a new Business Management system allowed Council to
take the opportunity to review unitisation of all classes of assets. As a resull, assets were split with a view to achieving
industry best practice life cycle asset management practices and compliance with newly infroduced international asset
management standards, This will be a multi year endeavour. The split allows betler classification of assets into appropriate
assel classes, The split has not impacted on depreciation per se, however dogs allow a more mature ¢stimate of remaining
ife which has impacted on depreciation as noted below, Prior year restatement has not cocurred for this asset unitisation
as the data is only availabale for 2014 and is not matesial to previous year comparatives,

Revision of residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment

During the year the residual values and estimated useful lives of certain itemns of property, plant and equipment were
revised, Council applied increases to the residual values of dams, weirs and reservior base structures, while simultaneously
reviewing the remaining life of the assets concerned. The residual value changes were based upon the elements of the
dam and weir walls which would endure during @ major refurbishment, i, the rock material. The conslruclion mode
for reservoir refurbishment typically does not impacl base structures, which endure into the next asset iteration and a
residual value reflects this carryover of fair value. Road residual values change in accordance to the unit rates applied by
the Queensland Local Government Roads Alliance Rates. This year, residuals are applied to roads with spray seal surfaces
far the first time, where the typical engineering treatment involves overspray of existing material. This change had minimal
impact, Other residual rates changes also had minimal impact and follow a consistent methodology based on engineering
practice. Asset lives were reviewed for water and wastewater plants, other major fixed plant, dams, weirs, reservairs,
buildings and [and improvements, The estimated amounts required for landfill restoration were updated to reflect new
landfill site plans and better cost information, These changes in estimate impact upon the depreciable amounts of assets
within these specific asset classes, These changes in estimate impacl upon the depreciable amounts of assets within
these specific asset classes. Asset lives were based on AECOM's standard industry lives, modified for some treatment
plant structures where the asset life profile and industry experience indicated an extended life is the optimum estimate.

Assuming the assets are held to the end of their estimated useful lives it has been management’s assessment that the net

effect of the revisions will result in @ change in the depreciation expense Tor the curren! and future years by the Tollowing
amounts:

'np;:-dhl 30 June - Chasge resslling from: Hmluuu; _lnldwlthanl: Life Changs Totad
Sao0 Saca Son0 Sooa

;4 1,49 12403 1581 .&5;
s = w694 | | mae T

P waes |  wmaw|  wam|  asaa

i 10153001 T 13,540 . TJ T 14,180 R :;
0 - — FLES0 | ||5I}.|:-.'.;'- B ;_}}_ o LA, 550
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Note 28 Superannuation

Council contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Qld) (the scheme). The scheme is a KMulti-employer Plan as
defined in the Australian Accounting Standard A458110 Employee Benefits.

The Queensland Local Government Superannuation Board, the trustes of the scheme, advised that the local government superannuation
scheme was a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commonwealth Superannuation Industry {Supervision)
legislation.

The scheme has theee elements referred 1o as:

The City Defined Benefits Fund [COBF) which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefits Fund

The Regional Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefit fund members warking for regional local governments;
and

The Accumulation Benefits Fund (48F)

The ABF is a defined contribution scheme as defined in AASBirg Employee Benefits. Council has no liability to or interest in the ABF
other than the payment of the statulory contributions as required by the Local Government Act 2009,

Council does not have any employees who are members of the COBF and, therefore, is not exposed to the obligations, assets or costs
associated with this fund.

The Regional DBF is a defined benefil plan as defined in AA58119 Eménfoyer Benefils, Council is not able to account for (he Regional
DBEF as a defined benefit plan in accordance with A458119 Employee Benefils because the scheme is unable to account to Council for
its proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and costs.

Any amount by which either fund Is over or under funded would only alfect future benefits and contributions to the Regional DBF, and
is not an asset or lability of Council, Accordingly there is no recognition in the financial statements of any over or under funding of the
scheme,

The audited general purpose financial report of the scheme as al 3o lune 2013 (the most recent available) which was not subject Lo any
audil qualification, indicales thal the assels of the scheme are sufficient 1o meet the vested benefils,

The mast recent actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as al 1 July 2012. The acluary indicated that "the Regional 1113
is currently in a satisfactory bul modest financial position and remains vulnerable to adverse shost and medium lerm experience.”

Following the previous actuarial assessment in 2009, countils were advised by the tustee of the scheme, following advice from
the scheme's actuary, that additional contribulions may be imposed in the future at a level necessary to protect the entillements of
Regional DBF members. In the 20027 actuarial report the actuary has recormmended no change to the employer contribution levels at
this time.

Under the Lacal Government Act 2008 the trustee of the scheme has the power Lo levy additional contributions on councils which have
employees in the Regional DBF when the actuary advises such additional contributions are payable - normally when the assets of the
DBF are insufficient to meet members' benefits,

The next actuarial investigation will be conducted as at 1 July zo1s,

There are currently 72 entities contribuling to the Regional DBF plan and any changes in contribution rates would apply equally to all
72 entities. Townsville City Council made 4.86% of the total contributions o the plan for the zo1 financial year.

2014 2013
5000 5000
The amount of superannuation contributions paid by Council to the scheme in this 13,354 12,699
pariod for the benefil of employees was:
Note 29 Trust funds 2014 2013
5000 $000
Trust funds held for oulside parties
Monies collected or held on behall of other entities yet to be paid out to of on behalf of 2,616 2,061
lhose enlities
Townsville City Coundil Mayor's Christmas Tree Appeal 25 22
2641 2,083

Council performs only a custodial rote in respect of these monies. As these funds cannot be used by Council, they are not brought to
account in these financial statements,
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Note3o  National Competition Policy

Definitions of activities

Before the end of each financial year, the Minister must decide for the financial year, the expenditure amounts (the “threshold
amounts”) for identifying a “significant business activity™ that should be a type 1 or 2 business activity.

Each lacal government may elect Lo apply a Code of Competitive Conduct (CCC) to any other identified business activities. However,
for any with current expenditure of $300,000 or more, the local government must decide, by resolution each year, whether to apply
the CCC 1o that activity.

A significant business activity whese the threshold expenditure has been set by the Minister for the 2014 financial year is as follows:

Type1 (a) far water and sewerage combined activities - $42.64 million
(b for other activities - $25.54 million

Type 2 [a) for water and sewerage combined activities - $12.77 million
(b} for ether activities - $8.55 million

Council has resolved to commercialise the following activities which fall into the expenditure guidelines above:

Type 1+ Water and Sewerage Services {Townsville Water)
Type 2 - Cleansing Services (Townsville Waste}

Type 3 » "business activities” to which the code of competitive conduct is applied are:
Performing Arts
Off Street Parking
This requires the application of full cost pricing, identifying the cost of communily service obligations (CS0) and eliminating the
advantages and disadvantages of pubdic ownership within that activity.

The followlng activity statements are for for activities subject to the compelitive code of conduct:

Funttlons Revenue for services Community Total Less; Operating | et Capltal Liss; Tax Net resull
provided to 3oth june 2014: | Service Revenue Expenses ':l’-turp_lul i Intome Equlvalent | for the year
/ e Defigit E
Countll External | Obligations ) ik

15 Fi 2014 2014 2014 4014 FUTEY 014 EIGM

£000 $000 £000 5000 £000 §000 000 5000 £000
Tevwmisville 17,690 170,834 3,148 185,426 124,051 61,385 a7 18,863 T0.83%
Water
Townsville 2,218 19534 614 31,248 21,688 9,560 1087 L1 7.E14
Waste
Petforming . 1,568 1,588 B, 140 {6,553) . 16,552
Ants
OFf Street . 83 . 183 358 [#5) ‘ - (5l
Parking
Total 19,918 202,359 3.762 1B, 555 156,237 64,318 i, 344 11,636 72,026

Community service obligations (C50)

The £SO value is determined by Council and represents an activity's cost(s) which would not be incurred if the activity's primary objective
were to make a profit. Councll provides funding from general revenue Lo the business activity to cover the cost of providing non-commercial
community services of costs deemed to be C50' by Council,

The information detailed [n this note is limited 1o those activities that are considered ta have significant dealings or the potential for
significant dealings with the private sector.

| Activities | csopescriptien 2014
Typesand 2 activilies e N 000
Tlgl'-\'ﬂ ;-{I;-Ea;n = Con sessinE Enr Community Services 3,148

I Townsville '.'.';u-t;: S . Cuncess!u_ns B ;D:h;rj.!:;.lrlmun-'w ;SI.‘ru'i{i'S i .BIH.
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HNote 31 Falr Value Measurements

(1) Recognised fair value measurements

This section explains the judgements and estimates.
Council measures and recognises the following assels af fair value on a recurring basis:
Property, plant and equipment

- Land

= Buildings

- lams and Weirs

- Fized Plant

- Transport netwsork

- Pipe Networks

- Landfills

- Land Improvements

« Cultural and Heritage

In accordance with AASE 13 Fair Violue Measurements are categorised on the following basis:

- Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)
- Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (level 2)

- Falr value based on unobservable inputs for the assel and liability (level )

Council does not measure any [labilities at fair value on a recurring basis.
Council has assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed in other notes.

Council borrowings are measured al amortised cost with interest recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income when incurred,
The fair value of borrowings disclosed in Mote 17 is provided by the Queensiand Treasury Corporation and represents the contraciual
undiscounted cash flows at balance date (level 2.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed o approximate their fair values due Lo their short-term
nature (Level 2). A long term debt from College of Mations (YWAM) to Councll, associaled with the sale and lease of Lots 4 and 5
RP116804, is carrled at the amount of the debt less a discount applied at the implicit rate derived from the interest payable (QTC 30 day
depoasit rale +.01%) in the lease and debt agreement. This debl is unsecured,

The following table categorises fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3inaccordance with AASE 13 Fair Walue Measuremedls.
Council does not have any assets or labilities measured al fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as level 1.

The Fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where il is
available, and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significant inpuls requited to falr value an asset are observable, the
assel is included in level 2. IF one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in
level 3. This Is the case for Council infrastruciure assets, which are of a specialist nature for which there is no active market for similar
or identical assets, These assels are valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs.

Thie table presents Council’s assels and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2014, Comparative information has
nat been provided as allowed by the transitional provisions of AASE 13 Fair Value Measurement.

AL 30 June 2014 Hote Leval 2 Level 3 Total
{Significant other [Significant
observable inputs) unobservable inpats)
S000 £000 5000

Recurring Tair value measipement s

- Lamd 12 5335403 . $335.403

+ Land lmiprosvements 12 . §71,510 §71.510
+ Bulldings

Market Value Buildings 12 SIT AT . §17.451

« Bulldings - spacial purpose o onresive land 12 §131,109 $131,109

- Dams and Walrs 12 S40%,027 €a09,027

Fined Plant 12 431,347 EL31, 07

= Transporl pebwon, 1 1,449, 265 §1,049 769

« Pipe Networks 12 51,275,565 51,275,568

- Landfills 12 . 55,554 $B,554

+ (Wher assets (Cultural and Heritage) 12 . 58,351 S84

Hon-recurring fair value measurements

Lamd hebd Tor sale k.

FELER . 51,784,635 B4, 147,539
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There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year, nor between levels 2 and 3.
Council’s policy Is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
Valuation techninues used to derive falr values for level 2 and level 3 valuations.

Council adopted AASB13 Fair Value Meosurement for the first time this financial year and has reviewed each valuation to ensure
compliance with the requirements of the new standard. There have been no changes in valuation techniques as a result of this review,

Specific valuation technigues used to value Council assets comprise:

(z) Significant unobservable input Range of inpuls Retationship of unobservable inputs to fair value

Discount rate 3-4.8% Higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.

Capitalisation rate Ba% Higher the capitalisation rate and expected vacancy rate, the
lower the falr value.

Expected vacancy rate 6-22% Higher the vacancy rate, the lower the fair value,

Rental growth rate A% 10 +4% Higher the rental growth rate, the higher the fair value.

Candition rating(remaining useful life) 15 Higher the condition rating, the lower the fair value,

Residual value j0-%222m Higher the residual value the higher the fair value.

(3) Land - {level 2)

Land fair values were determined by independent valuer, Knight Frank (Craig Stack FAPI MDIA Registered Valuer (Qld) no.1632), with
an effective date of 28 February 2014. Level 2 valuation inputs were used to value land in freehold title as well as land used for spacial
purposes, which is restricted in use under currenl zoning rules. Sales prices of comparable land sites in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into Lhis valuation approach are price per square metre.
Land was valued for its highest and best use, notwithstanding that this may differ from its current use,

Land classified as held for sale during the reporting period was measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cost
to sell al the time of reclassification, The fair value of the land was determined using the sales comparison approach described in (he
preceding paragraph, Council owns multiple land sites which are not currently used for administrative, communily of particular purposes.
This tand may be sold or exchanged from time to time as Council determines, however these parcels are not exclusively held for sale and
are recorded within the Land asset class. There was no land held specifically for sale as at 3o june, 2014,

(4) Buildings - (level 2 and 3)

The fair value of buildings were determined by independent valuers,

Knight Frank (Craig Stack FAPI MDIA Registered Valuer (QUd) no.1632) valued level 2 bulldings, which are those where an equivalent
markel value was the appropriate valuation technique. For these buildings the most significant inputs were estimated net rental per
sguare metre and the assoclated capitalisation rate, valued af the highest and best use. Other inputs into this valuation approach were
the sales prices of comparable properties after adjusting for differences in key attributes such as property size, Where a market can be
identified, the net current value of a building asset is the difference between the market value of the asset as a whole (including land) and
the markel value of the land component. For this exercise Council applied comparable land values from this revaluation for equivalent
land only valuations. One building, the Thuringowa Civic Centre, was valued at adjusted market rates, notwithstanding that is placed on
Reserve land, as there is a possibility that a portion of the building may be sublet in fulure years.

All other buildings were deemed of specialist nature with no active market or were placed on reserve land; valued at current replacement
value less obsolescence by Michael Puntill from AECOM (RPEQ No.uiBés)effective as at 28 February 200g. The comparative basis is a
new assel having similar service potential including allowances for preliminaries and professional feces. The gross current values were
derived by AECOM using their professional judgement, appropriate benchmarks, industry standard cost guides such as Rawlinson's
(Awstralian Construction Handbook) plus their proprietary databases such as Townsville tender price index. For specialist usage buildings,
by definition, there is no depth of market and the net current value of a building asset is the gross current value less straight ling
accumulaled depreciation (o reflect the consumed or expired service polential of he assel. The weighted average cost of construction
used to calculate thee gross current value of Council’s buildings and structures, including pools, lagoons, other specialist structures while
excluding car parks and small structures under 5o sgm, is 52,483 /sqm.

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation the assets are disaggregated into significant companents which exhibit useful lives.
Allowance has been made for the typical asset life cycle and renewal treatments of each component, residual value at the time the asset
is considered to be no longer available for use and the condition of the asset, Condition was assessed taking info account bath physical
characteristics as well as holistic factors such as functionality, capability, wtilisation and obsolescence. For this financial year, no residual
amounts were applied to buildings.

While the unit rates based on square metres can be supported by marke! evidence (level 2], the estimates of residual value, useful life,
pattern of consumption and asset condition that are used to calculate accumulated depreciation comprise unobservable inputs (level 3).
Where these ather inputs are significant to the valuation the overall valuation has been classified as level 3. The valuation's sensitivity to
these inplts is summarised balow.,
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Significant unobservable input Range of inpuls Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value
Condition rating [remaining useful life) 15 Higher the condition rating, the lower the fair value.
Residual value §a Na buildings have residual values

Infrastructure assets - (level 3)
Infrastructure assets comprise fixed plant, pipe networks, dams and weirs, land improvements and the transport network 2sset classes.

Al Council infrastructure assets were fair valued wsing wiitten down current replacement cost. This valuation comprises the asset's
currenl replacement cost (CRC) less accumnulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or
expired future economic benefits of the asset, Council first determined the gross cost of replacing the full service potential of the asset
and then adjusted this amount to take account of the expired service potential of the asset. Technical obsolescence was also included
as a discount factor with the differing service potential between a modern replacement asset and the assel in situ being 2 determinant
In assigning value, Where valuation |s based on visual external Inspection and where thal Inspection cannol reasonably determine the
interiar condition of the assel {which may require NOT or invasive inspection techniques and nol be cost justified), the date of installation
of the asset is a factor in determining remaining life.

CRC was measured by reference o the lowest cost at which the gross future economic benefits of the asset could currently be obtained
in the normal course of business, Where existing assets were over designed, had excess capacity, or were redundant an adjustment was
made so that the resulting valuation reflected the cost of replacing the existing economic benefits based on an efficient set of madern
equivalent assets o achieve the required level of service output within the Council's planning harizen,

The unit rates (labour and materials) and quantities applied o determine the CRC of an assel or assel companent were based on a
“Greenfield” top down assumption meaning that the CRC was determined as the full cost of replacement with a now asset including
components that may not need to be replaced, such as earthworks. Elements of original cost that may not be included in CRC include
stamyp duty, capitalised interest, buy outs of leases or other legisiative or legal impediments to access the sile where the assel is
constructed. The CRC was determined using methods relevant to the asset class as described under individual asset categories helow.

(5) Transpart network - caleulation of current replacement cost - (Level 3)
Roads
Current replacement cost

Council categorises its road infrastructure into urban and rural roads and the further sub-categorises these into sealed and unsealed
roads. All roads are managed in sections, generally assigned asintersection tointersection, but varying to meet engineering requirements,
All road sections are then compenentised into formation, pavement, surface, kerbs and foatpaths {(where applicable), Pathways, road
furniture, lights and car parks are not segmented. Council assumes that environmental factors such as soil type, climate and lopography
are consistent acrass each section Council also assumes a sectionis designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent
amount of labour and materials.

CRC for road sections is calculated by reference to asset linear and area specifications, then applying rates based road profiles established
by the Roads and Transport Alliance Valuation Project, a joint initiative by LGAD and the Queenstand Government, of which baoth Council
and the valuer are members, These rates are then modified by taking into account costs that apply to Council such as equipment hire
and usage rates, variations in employee wage rates, contractor cost indices and the local environment. Generally Townsville ground
conditions are described as wet and reactive, which lessens the economic life and can increase the cost of road construction, The cost
difference is less once the road formation has been constructed. Road condition is based on [aser camera road surface cracking indexes,
used also to extrapolate the condition of the underlying pavement. A factor is applied to the resulting condition matrix to allow for the
time the road has been in use - this factor is on a Council wide basis and not based on individual read usage. Residual values are applied
to pavement and spray seal surfaces. These residuals are attached to individual road rates for each oad profile and vary according to
road hierarchy, surface compaosition and ilerations of reuse of road material, A roads condition can vary markedly if an adverse weather
evenl oCcurs, causing moisture to enter the pavement structure and thus reduce the service potential of the road section component to
varying degrees, CRE for other ransport network components is serviced fram extracts from these rates of management estimates based
on current construction costs - these slements reflect @ small portion of averall transport network value,

The last full valuation of oad infrastructure was undertaken effective 28 February 2014, determined by independent valuations performed
by Lemmah Pty Ltd (Graham John jordan RPEQ Mo.3305). This was a review of rates. Laser camera eracking surveys are performed at
intervals of 3-5 years and was last performed in 2012

Accumulated depreciation
In determining the tevel of accumulated depreciation, roads were disaggregated into signiticant compaorents which exhibited different
useful lives. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, reflecting the utility to users of the service potential over the life of the

road, Usage Is determined by a mix of date constructed and a condition matriz based on laser camera derived cratking scores. Estimated
useful lives and residual values are disclosed in Note 12
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Bridges
Current replacemenl cost

A full vatuation of bridges assets was undertaken in zo1z, Each bridge is assessed Individually, with the valuation varying according 1o
the material type used for construction, the deck area, condition and size, Construction estimates were determined on a similar basis to
roads. Valuation in this financial year is based on management estimates of the 2012 rates adjusted for current construclion costs, Roads
Alllance rates and Index data.

Accumulated depreciation

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, roads were disaggregated Into significant components which exhibited different
useful lives, Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, reflecting the utility to users of the service potential over the life of the
road. Usage is determined by a mix of date constructed and a condition matiix based on laser camera derived cracking scores. Estimated
wselul lives and residual values are disclosed in Note 12.

{6) Pipe Networks - water, waslewater and stormwater - (Level 3)
Current replacement cost

Pipe network assets are split into over 400,000 individual components of varying length and function. Generally for pipes betow 10omm
in size, fittings are Included in the pipe revaluation rates but filtings, valves and flow meters are listed separately for larger pipe sizes,
Culverts in the stormwater system are generally characterised as bridges if that is their function, Key valuation data are usage, material,
depth, length and size. Secondary factors include ground conditions, construction cast indexes such as Rawlinson's, and local contractor
cosl data, Generally a standardised rate is used reflecting brownfield replacement, 1.e, access may be subject to restrictions on timing
and methodology. Many elements of wastewater and stormwater pipes may be relined at the end of their useful life, extending the
economic life 1o a high percentage of the ariginal life, Pipes that may be relined have a residual value, rotled over 1o a new assel when the
pipe is relined. Water pipes are not relined nor subject te CCTV inspections, CCTV inspection data currently does net cover a statistically
significant portion af the pipe netwark each year, Ihus this condition data is not applied ta remaining life for the netwaork,

The valuation process was performed as follows:

Stormwaler pipe nelwork assels were revalued al their depreciated replacement cost based on independent valuations performed by
Lermmah Ply Lid (Graham jotn Jordan RPEQ No.3305). The process incorporates a review of unit rates for stormwater drainage with the
valuer referring to the rates applied by other Councils utilising a *first principles’ model approach, co nsultant model rates and consultant
greenfield contract rates.

Water and Wastewater pipe network assets were revalued al their depreciated replacement cost based on assessments performed by
Morthern Water Management Pty Lid () Ballard RPEQ No.6854). The process incorporates the determination of unit rates by reference to
data contained in Rawlinson's Australian Construction Handbook plus an assessment of Council's internal and external costings.

Estimated useful lives and rosidual vaiues are disclosed in Note 12, The remaining uselul life was caleulated on an age of installation
basis,

(7) Landfills - (Level 3)

Current replacement cost

Waste landfill cell fair values were determined by Council engineers effective 30 lune 2014 Mew landfill cells are recorded at cost for
recently completed cells, then have an index applied for subsequent periods. The principal element of landfill costs is the restoration
cast provision at the end of the cells economic life. Long lved celis which are in the restoration phase do not have & cell construction cost

applied to them, Perindically new site plans are prepared which may be able (o utilise an existing cell for an extended period of fime. In
such cases only the incremental landfill cell cost is recorded at fair value,

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated depreciation was determined through assessment of the remaining life for each landHll cell, allocated on a straight line
basis. In the event af a cyclone that uses an exceptional amount of the cell capacity, an adjustment Lo remairing life is made.

(8) Fixed Plant, Dams gnd Weirs - comprising treatment plants and pump stations plus some coastal assets - (Level 3)

Current replacement cosl

All assets, including treatment plants, dams, welrs and pump stations and excluding pipelines were valued as al 28 February zo14 at
their respective depreciated replacement cost determined by independent valuations performed by Michael Puntill from AECOM (RPEQ

Mo.11865). Where a market value existed, this was used to determine fair value. These valuations were applied al 30 lune 2014 25 it was
determined there had been no material change in values in the intervening period.
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Council has a range of water and wastewater treatment plants, plus a significant number of water, wastewater and stormwater pump
stations, There are other structures such as tide gates. This year, all fixed plant assets have been physically inspected by the valuer
AECOM and their condition determined on a 1-5 scale by external Inspection. Photos and GPS data were recorded for each assel.
Valuations were determined an a top down, greenfield model for all the assets in this ¢lass. In some cases recent construction data (e.g.
ML St jehn Wastewater Treatmient Plant, Northern Water Treatment Plant) and 8ill of Material costs were used as prime data to inform the
valuation, including specialised indexes such as AECOM's proprietary tender price index for Townsville, In other cases, such as Douglas
Water Treatment plant, comparative construction costs for similar plants In southern parts of Australia were used as reference cosis.
Adjustments were made for local costs and condifions. Discounts were applied to modemn plant replacements 1o allow for differentials
in service potential to the in situ plant as appeopriate. Dam construction was based on original plans converted to current con struction

casks.

AECOM's cost models were derived from the following sources:
» AECOM dalabase
» Schedule rates for construction of asset or similar assets
» Cost curves derived by AECOM
» Building Price Index fables
» Recent contract and Lender data
» Rawlinson's Rates for building and construction, and
» Suppliers’ quotations

Factors taken into account in determining replacement costs included:

Development factors - the area in which development takes place (e.g. rural areas would have little or no restoration requirements,
whereas a high density area would have large amounts of high quality footpaths, road pavements and associated infrastructure that
would require reinstatement, and would alse require traffic control),

Sail Factors - The types of soil ar other surface material (e.g. areas where soil s sandy are difficult to excavate and would require shoring
while areas where the sail is generally free of rock would not present any great difficulty for excavation).

Valuation unit rates {replacement costs) of equipment were increased to allow for construction and installation, project overheads
including survey, emvironmental and investigation costs, engineering design, planning and project management, and permil and license
requirements.

Accumulated depreciation

In determining accumulated depreciation, assets were either subject to a site inspection and an assessment o determing remaining
useful life. Assels were allocated a condition assessment, which was used to estimate remaining useful life as tabled below:

Condition rating and description Description explanation Remaining useful life %
1. As new/ excelient Assel "as new” g5 % of useful life
2. Good Assel is reliable, assel operates as intended and its 75% of uselul life

appearance and structural integrity is up to the standard

3. Fair Assetis reliable and operates as intended, but its & 0% of uselul life
appearance and structural integrity are questionable,

4. Poar Assel still operates, bul does nat meet intended duly or 25% of useful life
does nol appear sound,

0% of uselul life

Asset is not funclioning/ needs immediate attention,

5. Unserviceable

(9] Land Improvements - (Level 3)

Land Improvements were valued a1 current replacement value (ess obsolescence by Michael Puntill from AECOM (RPEQ No.1iB6s),
effective a5 al 28 February 2014, The comparative basis is @ new asset having similar service potential including allowances for
preliminaries and peofessional fees, The gross current values were derived by AECOM using their professional judgement, appropriate
benchmarks, industry standard cost guides such as Rawlinson's (Australian Construction Handbook) plus their proprietary databases
such as Townsville tender price index,

{10) Al infrastructure = Sensitvity of valuation to unobservable Inputs - (Level 3)
The method used to value Councils' infrastructure assets ulilises @ number of inputs that reguire judgement and are therefore classed

as unobservable. While these judgements are made with the greatest care, and hased upon years of experience, different judgements
cauld result in a different valuation. The 1able below summarises the effect that changes in the most signilicant unobservable inputs

would have on the valualion:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Slgnlficant unobservable Input Range of inputs Relatianship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

Humber of Labour hours required number of construction hours The higher the labour hours,
the higher the fair value

Standard material usage guantities | Varies depending upon the type of material The higher the usage
quantities, the higher the fair
value

Condition rating (wsaful life) 1- 5 as specified above The higher the condition rating,

the lower the fair value,

Remaining useful life . 5100 YEars The longer [he.ramaining useful
life, the higher the fair value.

Length af time in service 0-100 YE3rs The longer the period In
service, the lower the fair value

Residual value %0 - $2z2m (by component) The higher the residual value
the higher the fair value.

(11) Other Assets (Cultural and Heritage) - (Level 3)

This asset group comprises art works held in galleries, public an, and heritage listed buildings and structures with approprizie
conservation plans. Art works in galleries are generally donated and, as a public gallery, may never be disposed of unless damaged or
destroyed by natural disasters, These are subject to regular inspections and valuations. The process was formerly a eyclical inspection
but has now changed (o a full valuation al periodical times, currently scheduled for 2015, Heritage listed bulldings and structures were
transferred across to this class as al 30 June 2014, at the valuation figure of 28 February 2014, From 2015, where the conservation planis
in place, it is planned to cease depreciation of these assets as thelr condition will always meet heritage requirements for the foreseeable

future.
{12) Changes in Fair Value Measurements using significant unobservable inpuls - (level 3)

The changes in level 3 assets with recurring fair value measurements are detailed in Note 12 (property, plant and equipment]. There have
been no transfers between level 1,2 o 3 measurements during the year,

{13) Valuation processes

Council’s valuation policies and procedures are set by the Executive Leadership Team, comprising the CEO and all the Directors of
Council, via the medium of an Assel Accounting Administrative Directive. This is reviewed annually laking into consideration all relevant
information. Council’s current policy for the valuation of praperty, plant and equipment {recurring fair value measurements) is sef oul in
Mote 1. Non-recurring fair value measurements are made at the point of reclassification by either a registered valuer or an appropriate
managemeni estimate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayor of Townsville City Council

Report on the Financial Report

| have audited the accompanying financial report of Townsville City Council, which comprises the statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2014, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year ended 30 June zo14, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

The Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with
prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012,
including compliance with Australian Accounting Standards. The Council's responsibility also includes such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

My respansibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit was conducted in
accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing
Standards. Those standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating 1o audit engagements and
that the audit is planned and performed Lo obtain reasonable assurance aboutl whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
reporl. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or errar, In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order
to design audil procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed
requirements. An audit alse includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial re port.

| believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Independence

The Auditer-General Act 2009 pramotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all authorised auditors, The Auditor-
General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities and can be removed only by Parliament.

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is nol subject 1o direction by any person
about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an
audit, access to all documents and property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditar-General's opinion
are significant.

Opinian

In accordance wilh s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009 -
{a) | have received all the information and explanations which | have required: and
(b) in my opinian
] the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of accounts have been
complied with in all material respects; and
(i) the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed accounting
standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of Townsville City Council for the financial vear
1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 and of the linancial position as al the end of that yvear,
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Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Repert

Those viewing an electranic presentation of these financial statements should note that audit does not provide assurance
on the integrity of the information presented electronically and does not provide an opinion on any information which may
be hyperlinked to or from the Anancial statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent
risks arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy of the audiled
financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented infarmation,

EMQCQDQ.L.

B MACRAE FCPA Queensland Audit Office
as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland Brisbane

QUEENSLANS
2 B OCT 1014

4upit oFFICE
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CURRENT YEAR FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Measures of Financial sustainability

Council's parformance af 30 June zo14 against key financial ratios and targets:

Operating surplus ratia Assel sustainability ratie | Net financial liabilities ratio
How the measure is Het result {excluding capital Capital expenditure on Total liabilities less currenl
calculated Items) divided by total the replacement of assets assels divided by lotal
operating revenue {excluding [renewals) divided by operating revenue (excluding
capital depreciation capital items)
Targel Between 0% and 10% greater than go% not greater than 60%
Actual J % 8B% }?%

Note: Basis of Preparation

The current year financial sustainability stalement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideling 2013, The amounts used 1o calculate the
three reported measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn from Council's audited general purpose financial staterments
for the year ended 30 June 2014.

* Operating surplus ratio has been caledlated from the Statement of Comprehensive Income, with details on capital revenue and capital
expenditure 1o be excluded derived from note 2 and 3 respectively. Workings as follows:

[Het result $28,975.000 - Capital Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations $54,479.000 (note 2) - Capital Contribution of assets
%46,601,000 (note 2} + Capital Expenses $78,270,000 (note 3)] / Revenue $381,960,000

CERTIFICATE OF ACCURACY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

This current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Govermment Regulation 2012
{the regulation).

In accordance with Section 212(c) of the Regulation we certify that this current-year financial sustainability statemen! has been accurately
calculated.

Mayar

Dated this 2 f++h day of OC.'.TG'BEE._ 2014

Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 1‘&”" day of &G\“‘Y 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Mayor of Townsville City Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

| have audited the accompanying currenl-year financial sustainability statement, which is a special purpose financial
report of Townsville City Council for the year ended 30 June 2014, comprising the statement and explanatory notes, and
certificates given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

The Council’s Responsibility far the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current-year financial sustainability statement
in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012, The Council's responsibility also includes such internal contral
as the Council delermines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the current-year financial sustainability statement based on the audit. The
audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditar-General of Queensland Auditing Standards, which incorporate the
Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit
engagemenls and that the audil is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the statement
is free from material misstalement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the statement. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the statement, whether due Lo fraud or error. |n making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Council's preparation and fair presentation of the statement in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's
internal cantrol. Anaudit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the statement,

My responsibility is to form an opinion as to whether the statement has been accurately calculated based on the Council's
general purpose financial report. My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the approprialeness or
relevance of the reported ratios, nor on the Council’s future sustainability,

| believe that the audit evidence oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Independence

The Auditor-General Act 2000 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all authorised auditors. The Auditor-
General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities and can be removed only by Parliament.

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriale and is nof subject to direction by any person
aboul the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an
audit, access to all documents and properly and can report e Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion
are significant,

Opinion
In accordance with s.212 of the Locol Govermment Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all material respects, the current-

year financial sustainability statement of Townsville City Council, for the year ended 30 |une 2014, has been accurately
caleulated.
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Emphasis af Matter - Basis of Accounting

Without madifying my opinion, attention |s drawn to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current-year
financial sustainability stalement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management (Sustainability)
Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the Council's reporting responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation
2012, As a resull, the statement may not be suitable for another purpose.

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of the Audited Statement

Those viewing an electronic presentation of this special purpose financial report should note that audit does not provide
assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and does not provide an opinion an any information
which may be hyperlinked to or from the financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with
the inherent risks arising from electronic presentation of informaltion, they are advised to refer Lo the prinled copy of the
audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented information.

2 8 0CT 2014

%A/iox_m:&

B MACRAE FCPA Queensland Audit Office
as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland Brisbane

o

QUEENSLANS
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TOWNSVILLE CITY COUNCIL
LONG TERM FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Measures of Financial Operating surplus ratio Asset sustainability ratio | Net financial llabilitles ratio
sustainability
How the measure is Het resull divided by tatal Caplal expenditure on the Total biabilities less current
calculated operating revenug replacement of assels assels divided by total
{renewals) divided by operaling revenue
depraciation expense
Targel Between 0% and 10% greater than gate not grealer than 60"‘.&
| 3o-Jun-1y 2% ) Ba% 7o
3o un-ts = 1% 82% 75%
E 30-Jun-16 a E’a B1% Bo%
E 30-jun-17 1% Bi1% 77
2 | 304uns 1% 76% 88%
ﬁ 30-lun-1g 0% . 7% a gﬁg
% 30-Jun-20 6% 17% 7%
IE 30:-Jun-21 % ?3% 78%
30-jun-232 2% 73% 74%
30-Jun-23 7% 74% &%

Financial Management Strategy

Council measures revenue and expendilure trends over lime as a guide lo fulure requirements and Lo make decisions aboul the efficient
allocation of resources to ensure the most effective provision of services. Coundl ensures that its financial management strategy is
prudent and that its long-term financial forecast shows a sound fina neial position whilst also being able to meet the communily’s current
and future needs,

CERTIFICATE OF ACCURACY FOR THE LONG TERM FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT PREPARED AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

This long-term financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Government Reguiation 2002
(the regulation).

in accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we cerlify that this long-term financial sustainability statement has been acc urately
calculated.

Mayor

Dated this

2 LL+H day of Dectere i 2oy

Chief Executive Officer

Z.-‘I:k day of EJMY 2014

Dated this
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